
Medical Examiners Commission 
Meeting 

November 4, 2022 
 

Barbara C. Wolf, M.D.     •     Kenneth T. Jones     •     Nick Cox, J.D. 

    Charlie Cofer, J.D.    •    Robin Giddens Sheppard, L.F.D. 

Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P.    •    Carol R. Whitmore, R.N. 



Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P.

Chairman

District 10 Medical Examiner

1021 Jim Keene Boulevard

Winter Haven, Florida 33880

(863) 298-4600

email: StephenNelson@polk-county.net

First Term: 2/13/2014-7/1/2016

Second Term: 08/29/2018-07/01/2020 

Barbara C. Wolf, M.D. Honorable Charlie Cofer, J.D.

District 5 Medical Examiner Public Defender, 4th Judicial Circuit

809 Pine Street 407 N. Laura Street

Leesburg, Florida 34748 Jacksonville, Florida 32202

(352) 326-5961 (904) 255-4673

email: barbara.wolf@marioncountyfl.org email: ccofer@pd4.coj.net

First Term: 8/7/2015-7/1/2019 First Term: 08/29/2018-07/01/2021

Robin Giddens Sheppard, L.F.D. Nick Cox, J.D. 

Funeral Director/Vice President Statewide Prosecutor

Hardage-Giddens Funeral Homes Office of the Attorney General

4801 San Jose Boulevard 3507 E. Frontage Road, Suite 325

Jacksonville, Florida 32207 Tampa, Florida 33607

(904) 737-7171 813-287-7960

email: Robin.Sheppard@dignitymemorial.com email: nick.cox@myfloridalegal.com

First Term: 8/15/2013-7/1/2016 Term: Not Applicable

Second Term: 08/29/2018-07/01/2020

Mr. Kenneth T. Jones Honorable Carol Whitmore

State Registrar Manatee County Commission

Florida Department of Health Board of County Commissioners

Bureau of Vital Statistics Post Office Box 1000

Post Office Box 210 Bradenton, Florida 34206-1000

Jacksonville, Florida 32231 (941) 745-3704

(904) 359-6900 ext. 1001 email: carol.whitmore@mymanatee.org

email: Ken.Jones@flhealth.gov First Term: 8/15/2013-7/1/2017

Term: Not Applicable Second Term: 08/29/2018-07/01/2021

Vacant Vacant

Sheriff State Attorney

STAFF

Medical Examiners Commission

Florida Department of Law Enforcement

Post Office Box 1489

Tallahassee, Florida 32302

(850) 410-8600

Bureau Chief Brett Kirkland Government Analyst II Ashley Williams

(850) 410-8600 (850) 410-8609

brettkirkland@fdle.state.fl.us ashleywilliams@fdle.state.fl.us

Government Analyst II Megan Neel General Counsel James Martin, J.D.

(850) 410-8664 (850) 410-7676

meganneel@fdle.state.fl.us jamesmartin@fdle.state.fl.us

MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION

Updated September 20, 2022

mailto:brettkirkland@fdle.state.fl.us
mailto:ashleywilliams@fdle.state.fl.us
mailto:meganneel@fdle.state.fl.us
mailto:jamesmartin@fdle.state.fl.us


District 1 District 9 (Home Rule) District 17 (Home Rule)

Deanna Oleske, M.D. Joshua D. Stephany, M.D. Rebecca MacDougall, M.D.

Interim Medical Examiner 2350 East Michigan Street Medical Examiner

2114 Airport Blvd. Suite 1450 Orlando, Florida  32806 5301 S.W. 31st Avenue

Pensacola, Florida  32504 Program Manager Sheri Blanton Ft. Lauderdale, Florida  33312

Director of Operations Dan Schebler (407) 836-9400 Division Admin Assistant Heather Galvez

(850) 332-7300 FAX:(407) 836-9450 (954) 357-5200

FAX: (850) 285-0774 e-mail: Sheri.Blanton@ocfl.net FAX: (954) 327-6580

e-mail: dans@fldme.com e-mail: rmacdougall@broward.org

District 10

District 2 Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P. District 18

Jon R. Thogmartin, M.D. 1021 Jim Keene Boulevard Sajid S. Qaiser, M.D.

Interim Medical Examiner Winter Haven, Florida  33880 1750 Cedar Street

560 Leonard Gray Way Office Manager Sheli Wilson Rockledge, Florida  32955

Tallahassee, Florida 32304 (863) 298-4600 Program Manager Michael Szczepanski

Operations Manager Tiffany Poston FAX:(863) 298-5264 (321) 633-1981

(850) 606-6600 e-mail: StephenNelson@polk-county.net FAX: (321) 633-1986

FAX: (850) 606-6601 e-mail: michael.szczepanski@brevardfl.gov

e-mail: Info@Dist2ME.org District 11 (Home Rule)

Kenneth Hutchins, M.D. District 19

District 3 Medical Examiner Patricia A. Aronica, M.D.
Dixie Co. Number One on Bob Hope Road Interim Medical Examiner
   ME Services Provided by District 8 Miami, Florida  33136-1133 2500 South 35th Street
Lafayette, Madison & Suwannee Co. Director of Operations Sandra Boyd Ft. Pierce, Florida  34981
   ME Services Provided by District 2 (305) 545-2400 Operations Manager Kimberly Carroll

Columbia & Hamilton Co. FAX: (305) 545-2412 (772) 464-7378
   ME Services Provided by District 4 e-mail: sandra.boyd@miamidade.gov FAX: (772) 464-2409

e-mail: carrollk@stlucieco.org

District 4 District 12

B. Robert Pietak, M.D. Russell S. Vega, M.D. District 20

Interim Medical Examiner 2001 Siesta Drive, Suite 302 Marta U. Coburn, M.D.

2100 Jefferson Street Sarasota, Florida  34239 3838 Domestic Avenue

Jacksonville, Florida  32206 Director of Operations David Winterhalter Naples, Florida  34104

Director of Operations Tim Crutchfield (941) 361-6909 Adminsitrative Coordinator Michelle Correia

(904) 255-4000 FAX: (941) 361-6914 (239) 434-5020

FAX: (904) 630-0964 email: rvega@fldist12me.com FAX: (239) 434-5027

e-mail: tcrutchfield@coj.net e-mail: naplesme@d20me.net

District 13 (Home Rule)

District 5 Kelly G. Devers, M.D. District 21

Barbara C. Wolf, M.D. 11025 North 46th Street Rebecca A. Hamilton, M.D.

809 Pine Street Tampa, Florida  33617 70 South Danley Drive

Leesburg, Florida  34748 Manager of Operations Harrison Cowan Ft. Myers, Florida  33907

Director of Operations Lindsey Bayer (813) 914-4500 Director of Operations Patti Wheaton

(352) 326-5961 FAX: (813) 914-4594 (239) 533-6339

FAX: (352) 365-6438 email: DeversK@hillsboroughcounty.org FAX: (239) 277-5017
e-mail: Lindsey.Bayer@marioncounty fl.org e-mail: pwheaton@leegov.com

District 14

District 6 Jay Radtke, M.D. District 22

Jon R. Thogmartin, M.D. 3737 Frankford Avenue Russell S. Vega, M.D.

10900 Ulmerton Road Panama City, Florida  32405 Interim Medical Examiner

Largo, Florida  33778 Director of Operations Whit Majors 18130 Paulson Drive

Chief Investigator Damon Breton (850) 747-5740 Pt. Charlotte, Florida  33954

(727) 582-6800 FAX: (850) 747-5745 Director of Operations Penny Fulton

FAX: (727) 582-6820 e-mail: wmajors@baycountyfl.gov (941) 625-1111

e-mail: dbreton@co.pinellas.fl.us FAX: (941) 627-0995

District 15 (Home Rule) e-mail: medex22@embarqmail.com

District 7 (Home Rule) Wendolyn Sneed, M.D.

James W. Fulcher, M.D. 3126 Gun Club Road District 23

1360 Indian Lake Road West Palm Beach, Florida  33406 Jon R. Thogmartin, M.D.

Daytona Beach, FL  32124-1001 Forensic Supervisor Heron Ruiz Interim Medical Examiner

Director of Operations Karla Orozco (561) 688-4575 4501 Avenue A

(386) 258-4060 FAX: (561) 688-4588 St. Augustine, Florida  32095

FAX: (386) 258-4061 e-mail: wsneed@pbcgov.org Forensic Operations Coordinator Kelly Boulos

e-mail: korozco@volusia.org (904) 209-0820

District 16 FAX: (800) 255-8617

District 8 Michael Steckbauer, M.D. e-mail: kboulos@sjcfl.us

Thomas M. Coyne, M.D., Ph.D Interim Medical Examiner

Interim Medical Examiner 56639 Overseas Hwy District 24

3217 SW 47th Avenue Marathon, Florida  33050 Barbara C. Wolf, M.D.

Gainesville, Florida 32608 (305) 743-9011 ME Services Provided by District 5

Operations Manager Ricardo Camacho FAX: (305) 743-9013

(352) 273-9292 e-mail: meo@monroecounty-fl.gov District 25 (Home Rule)

FAX: (352) 273-9288 Joshua D. Stephany, M.D.

e-mail: ricardocamacho@ufl.edu ME Services Provided by District 9

FLORIDA DISTRICT MEDICAL EXAMINERS

October 20, 2022



FLORIDA ASSOCIATE MEDICAL EXAMINERS

District 1 District 7 District 11 District 17
Tim J. Gallagher, M.D., M.H.S.A. Cassie Boggs, M.D. Alexander Blank, M.D. Iouri G. Boiko, M.D., Ph.D.
Lorraine Lopez-Morell, M.D. Mary G. Ripple, M.D. Brittney Imblum, M.D. Marcela Chiste, M.D.
Ami Murphy, D.O. (Noel R. Agudo, M.D.) Katherine Kenerson, M.D. Joseph M. Curran, M.D.
(Danielle R. Armstrong, D.O.) (Marcela Chiste, M.D.) Benjamin Mathis, M.D. Erin Ely, M.D.
(Wilson A. Broussard, M.D.) (Susan S. Ignacio, M.D.) Shanedelle S. Norford, M.D. Alexis Jelinek, M.D.
(Thomas M. Coyne, M.D., Ph.D.) (Kailee Imperatore, M.D.) Mark J. Shuman, M.D. Gertrude M. Juste, M.D.
(Jennifer Dierksen, M.D.) (Wayne D. Kurz, M.D.) Tuvet Tran, M.D. Reinhard W. Motte, M.D.
(Lisa Flannagan, M.D.) (Rebecca MacDougall, M.D.) Jason Van Roo, M.D. Stephen Robinson, M.D.
(Maneesha Pandey, M.D.) (Noel A. Palma, M.D.) Sara H. Zydowicz, D.O. Darin Trelka, M.D., Ph.D.
(Jay M. Radtke, M.D.) (Jon R. Thogmartin, M.D.) (Michael D. Bell, M.D.) (Kenneth Hutchins, M.D.)

(Lee Tormos, M.D.) (Iouri G. Boiko, M.D., Ph.D.) (Katherine L. Kenerson, M.D.)
District 2 (Christopher I. Wilson, M.D.) (Manfred Borges, M.D.) (Emma O. Lew, M.D.)
Anthony J. Clark, M.D. (Marcela Chiste, M.D.) (Benjamin Mathis, M.D.)
Lisa M. Flannagan, M.D. District 8 (Marta Coburn, M.D.) (Wendolyn Sneed, M.D.)
(Noel R. Agudo, M.D.) (Robert Buchsbaum, M.D., J.D.) (Gertrude M. Juste, M.D.)
(Susan S. Ignacio, M.D.) (Leszek Chrostwoski, M.D.) (Rebecca MacDougall, M.D.) District 18
(Kailee Imperatore, M.D.) (Tracey S. Corey, M.D.) (Craig Mallak, M.D.) Stacey Simons, M.D. 
(Andrew Koopmeiners, M.D.) (Peter Gillespie, M.D.) (Linda R. O'Neil, M.D.)
(Wayne D. Kurz, M.D.) (Tera A. Jones, M.D.) (Marlon S. Osbourne, M.D.) District 19
(Noel A. Palma, M.D.) (Wendy A. Lavezzi, M.D.) (Stephen Robinson, M.D.) Raman Baldzizhar, M.D.

(Stephen J. Nelson, M.D.) (Stacey A. Simons, M.D.) Barbara Bollinger, M.D.
District 3 (Aurelian Nicolaescu, M.D.) (Terrill Tops, M.D.) Linda Rush O'Neil, M.D.
Dixie Co. (Deanna A. Oleske, M.D.) (Lee Marie Tormos, M.D.) Adrienne Sauder, M.D.
  ME Services Provided by District 8 (Jon R. Thogmartin, M.D.) (Michael D. Bell, M.D.)
Lafayette, Madison, & Suwannee Co. (Barbara C. Wolf, M.D.) District 12 (Stuart M. Graham, M.D.)
  ME Services Provided by District 2 Wilson A. Broussard, M.D. (Marie H. Hansen, M.D.)
Columbia & Hamilton Co. District 9 Phoutthasone Thirakul, M.D. (Gertrude M. Juste, M.D.)
  ME Services Provided by District 4 Jesse C. Giles, M.D. Suzanne R. Utley-Bobak, M.D. (Wendy A. Lavezzi, M.D.)

Marie H. Hansen, M.D. (Leszek Chrostowski, M.D.) (Stephen J. Nelson, M.D.)
District 4 Rachel A. Lange, M.D. (Laura S. Hair, M.D.) (Joshua D. Stephany, M.D.)
Robert Buchsbaum, M.D., J.D. Chantel Njiwaji, M.D. (Stephen J. Nelson, M.D.) (Sajid S. Qaiser, M.D.)
Peter Gillespie, M.D. Sara H. Zydowicz, D.O. (Robert R. Pfalzgraf, M.D.) (Mark J. Shuman, M.D.)
Brittany L. Glad, D.O. (Cassie Boggs, M.D.) (Valerie J. Rao, M.D.) (Vera V. Volnikh, M.D.)
Aurelian Nicolaescu, M.D. (Tracy S. Corey, M.D.) (Daniel L. Schultz, M.D.) (Barbara C. Wolf, M.D.)
Robert R. Pfalzgraf, M.D. (James Fulcher, M.D.) (Wendolyn Sneed, M.D.) (Sara H. Zydowicz, D.O.)
Christopher Ramos-Robles, M.D. (Heather M. Gage, M.D)
Sandra A. Siller, M.D. (D. Fintan Garavan, M.D., Ph.D.) District 13 District 20
(Leszek Chrostowski, M.D.) (Julia V. Hegert, M.D.) Ryan D. McCormick, M.D. Manfred Borges, Jr., M.D.
(William F. Hamilton, M.D.) (Tera A. Jones, M.D.) Daissy C. McEnnan, M.D. Andrea N. Minyard, M.D.
(Deanna A. Oleske, M.D.) (Wendy Lavezzi, M.D.) Paul F. McGowan, D.O. (Michael D. Bell, M.D.)
(Valerie J. Rao, M.D.) (Shanedelle S. Norford, M.D.) Ashley R. Perkins, D.O. (Rebecca A. Hamilton, M.D.)
(Barbara C. Wolf, M.D.) (Stephen J. Nelson, M.D.) Noah D. Reilly, D.O. (Emma O. Lew, M.D.)

(Mary G. Ripple, M.D.) Milad Webb, M.D.
District 5 (Sajid S. Qaiser, M.D.) (Leszek Chrostowski, M.D.) District 21
Tracey S. Corey, M.D. (Vera V. Volnikh, M.D.) (Thomas M. Coyne, M.D.) Colin D. Appleford, D.O.
Heather M. Gage, M.D. (Barbara C. Wolf, M.D.) (D. Fintan Garavan, M.D., Ph.D.) Noelia Alemar Hernandez, M.D.
Tera A. Jones, M.D. (Mary K. Mainland, M.D.) Tracy L. Shipe, D.O.
Wendy A. Lavezzi, M.D. District 10 (Stephen J. Nelson, M.D.) Sarah C. Thomas, M.D.
Shanedelle S. Norford, M.D. D. Fintan Garavan, M.D., Ph.D. (Phoutthasone Thirakul, M.D.) (Michael D. Bell, M.D.)
(Michael Bell, M.D.) Vera V. Volnikh, M.D. (Vera V. Volnikh, M.D.) (Manfred C. Borges, M.D.)
(Thomas M. Coyne, M.D., Ph.D.) (Kelly G. Devers, M.D.) (Sara H. Zydowicz, D.O.) (Wilson A. Broussard, Jr., M.D.)
(James W. Fulcher, M.D.) (Susan S. Ignacio, M.D.) (Leszek Chrostowski, M.D.)
(William F. Hamilton, M.D.) (Wayne D. Kurz, M.D.) District 14 (Marta U. Coburn, M. D.)
(Susan S. Ignacio, M.D.) (Wendy Lavezzi, M.D.) (Michael D. Bell, M.D.) (Riazul H. Imami, M.D., Ph.D.)
(Wayne D. Kurz, M.D.) (Ryan D. McCormick, M.D.) (Phoutthasone Thirakul, M.D.) (Katherine L. Kenerson, M.D.)
(Aurelian Nicolaescu, M.D.) (Daissy C. McEnnan, M.D.) (Tim J. Gallagher, M.D., M.H.S.A.) (Rachel A. Lange, M.D.)
(Noel A. Palma, M.D.) (Noel A. Palma, M.D.) (Katherine L. Kenerson, M.D.) (Stephen J. Nelson, M.D.)
(Joshua D. Stephany, M.D.) (Ashley R. Perkins, D.O.) (Andrea N. Minyard, M.D.) (Valerie J. Rao, M.D.)
(Jon Thogmartin, M.D.) (Jon R. Thogmartin, M.D.) (Mark J. Shuman, M.D.) (Mark J. Shuman, M.D.)
(Gary L. Utz, M.D.) (Christopher I. Wilson, M.D.) (Phoutthasone Thirakul, M.D.)
(Christopher I. Wilson, M.D.) (Milad Webb, M.D.) District 15 (Vera V. Volnikh, M.D.)

(Barbara C. Wolf, M.D.) Natalia Belova, M.D.
District 6 Catherine Miller, M.D. District 22
Noel R. Agudo, M.D. Marlon S. Osbourne, M.D. Leszek Chrostowski, M.D.
Susan S. Ignacio, M.D. Heidi Reinhard, M.D. Valerie J. Rao, M.D.
Kailee Imperatore, M.D. Terrill Tops, M.D. (Wilson A. Broussard, Jr., M.D.)
Wayne D. Kurz, M.D. Lee Marie Tormos, M.D. (Phoutthasone Thirakul, M.D.)
Andrew Koopmeiners, M.D. Anthony Vinson, DO (Suzanne R. Utley-Bobak, M.D.)
Noel A. Palma, M.D. (Michael Bell, M.D.) (Russell S. Vega, M.D.)
Christopher I. Wilson, M.D. (Kenneth D. Hutchins, M.D.)
(Wilson A. Broussard, M.D.) (Stacey A. Simons, M.D.) District 23
(Marcela Chiste, M.D.) (Mark J. Shuman, M.D.) Iana Lesnikova, M.D.
(Tracey S. Corey, M.D.) (Michael Steckbauer, M.D.) (Cassie L. Boggs, M.D.)
(Thomas M. Coyne, M.D., Ph.D.) (James W. Fulcher, M.D.)
(Rebecca A. Hamilton, M.D.) District 16 (Mary G. Ripple, M.D.)
(Tera A. Jones, M.D.) (Iouri G. Boiko, M.D. Ph.D.)
(Wendy A. Lavezzi, M.D.) (Marlon S. Osbourne, M.D.) District 24
(Rebecca MacDougall, M.D.) (Mark J. Shuman, M.D.) ME Services Provided by District 5
(Stephen J. Nelson, M.D.)
(Mark J. Shuman, M.D.) District 25
(Phoutthasone Thirakul, M.D.) ME Services Provided by District 9
(Suzanne R. Utley-Bobak, M.D.) ME Services Provided by District 9
(Russell S. Vega, M.D.)
(Vera V. Volnikh, M.D.)
(Barbara C. Wolf, M.D.)

Effective October 28, 2022 (  ) Indicates secondary appointment for cross coverage



District 1 

Escambia 

Okaloosa 

Santa Rosa 

Walton 

 

District 2 

Franklin 

Gadsden 

Jefferson 

Leon 

Liberty 

Taylor 

Wakulla 

 

District 3 *Covered by 

Columbia *4 

Dixie *8 

Hamilton *4 

Lafayette *2 

Madison *2 

Suwannee *2 

 

District 4 

Clay 

Duval 

Nassau 

 

District 5 

Citrus 

Hernando 

Lake 

Marion 

Sumter 

 

District 6 

Pasco 

Pinellas 

 

District 7 

Volusia 

 

District 8 

Alachua 

Baker 

Bradford 

Gilchrist 

Levy 

Union 

 

District 9 

Orange 

 

District 10 

Hardee 

Highlands 

Polk 

District 11 

Miami-Dade 

 

District 12 

DeSoto 

Manatee 

Sarasota 

 

District 13 

Hillsborough 

 

District 14 

Bay 

Calhoun 

Gulf 

Holmes 

Jackson 

Washington 

 

District 15 

Palm Beach 

 

District 16 

Monroe  

 

District 17 

Broward 

 

District 18 

Brevard 

 

S
a
n
ta

 R
o
s
a
 

 O
k
a
lo

o
s
a
 

 
W

a
lt
o
n
 

 

Holmes 

 

Bay 

 

Jackson 

 
Calhoun 

 
Gulf 

 

Leon 

 

Gadsden 

 
Liberty 

 Franklin 

 

Wakulla 

 
Taylor 

 

Baker 

 

Dixie 

 

Suwannee 

 

Citrus 

 

Alachua 

 

Clay 

 

S
t.

 

J
o
h
n
s
 

 

Putnam 

 
Marion 

 

Levy 

 
Lake 

 S
u
m

te
r 

 

Hernando 

 

Seminole 

 Orange 

 
Polk 

 
Osceola 

 
Manatee 

 
Desoto 

 

Hardee 

 Highlands 

 
Charlotte 

 
Glades 

 
Hendry 

 
Collier 

 

Lee 

 

Miami-

Dade 

 

Broward 

 

Palm Beach 

 

Monroe 

 

Martin 

 

St.  

Lucie 

 

Indian 

River 

 

Pasco 

 

1 
 14 

 
2 
 

3 4 
 

23 
 

5 
 

7 
 

6 
 13 

 
10 
 

9 
 

18 
 

12 
 
22 
 

21 
 

17 
 

11 
 

16 
 

24 
 

20 
 

8 
 

19 
 
15 
 

C
o
lu

m
b
ia

 

 

Madison 

 

Coverage Map 
Florida Medical Examiner Districts 

 

District 19 

Indian River 

Martin 

Okeechobee 

St. Lucie 

 

District 20 

Collier 

 

District 21 

Glades 

Hendry 

Lee 

 

District 22 

Charlotte 

 

District 23 

Flagler 

Putnam 

St. Johns 

 

District 24 *Covered by 

Seminole *5 

 

District 25 *Covered by 

Osceola *9 

 

25 
 



The next MEC Meeting will be February 18th at the Orlando Lake Marriot in Lake Mary. 

MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION MEETING 
Bluegreen’s Bayside Resort & Spa 

4114 Jan Cooley Drive 
Panama City Beach, FL 32408 

November 4, 2022, 10:00 AM CDT 

Opening Remarks 

Introduction of Commission Members and Staff 

Approval of Meeting Agenda and Minutes from previous Commission Meeting of July 27, 2022 
 

ISSUE NUMBER PRESENTER 

1. State Attorney Appointment of Interim District 22 Medical Examiner Stephen J. Nelson, M.D. 
2. Informational Items:

• Obituary:  Lee R. Miller, M.D. Stephen J. Nelson, M.D. 
• Status Report:  MEC Appointments and Reappointments Brett Kirkland, Ph.D. 
• Status Update: DME Appointments and Reappointments Brett Kirkland, Ph.D. 
• District 2 Medical Examiner Vacancy Stephen J. Nelson, M.D. 
• 2021 Annual Drugs in Deceased Persons Report Megan Neel 
• 2021 Annual Workload Report Megan Neel 
• 2022 Interim Drug Report Megan Neel 
• 2021 Coverdell Status Update Ashley Williams 

3. Nomination for District 8 Medical Examiner Stephen J. Nelson, M.D. 

4. Unidentified Deceased Initiative Ashley Williams 

5. Emerging Drugs Brett Kirkland, Ph.D. 

6. Other Business Stephen J. Nelson, M.D. 

• Resolution for Carol Whitmore



MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION MEETING 
Omni Orlando at ChampionsGate 

1500 Masters Boulevard 
ChampionsGate, Florida 33896 
July 27, 2022 10:00 AM EDT 

 
 
Commission Chairman Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P, called the meeting of the Medical 
Examiners Commission to order at 10:06 AM. He advised those in the audience that the meetings of the 
Medical Examiners Commission are open to the public and that members of the public will be allowed 
five minutes to speak.  He then welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked Commission members, 
staff, and audience members to introduce themselves. 
 
Commission members present: 

Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P., District 10 Medical Examiner 
Barbara C. Wolf, M.D., District 5 & 24 Medical Examiner 
Nick Cox, J.D., Statewide Prosecutor, Office of the Attorney General  
Robin Giddens Sheppard, L.F.D., Funeral Director 
Kenneth T. Jones, State Registrar, Department of Health 
Hon. Charlie Cofer, J.D., Public Defender, 4th Judicial Circuit 
 

Commission members not present: 

Hon. Carol R. Whitmore, R.N., Manatee County Commissioner 
 
Commission staff present: 

Brett Kirkland, Ph.D.  Megan Neel 
Chad Lucas Ashley Williams 
James D. Martin, J.D. 

 
District Medical Examiners present: 

Jon R. Thogmartin, M.D. (District 2, 6, & 23) Patricia A. Aronica, M.D. (District 19) 
Jay Radtke, M.D. (District 14) Kelly G. Devers, M.D. (District 13) 
Russell S. Vega, M.D. (District 12) Deanna Oleske, M.D. (District 1)  
James W. Fulcher, M.D. (District 7)                          B. Robert Pietak, M.D. (District 4)  
Marta U. Coburn, M.D. (District 20)                          Joshua D. Stephany, M.D. (District 9 & 25) 
 

Other District personnel present: 

Paul Petrino (District 15) Paul McGowan, D.O. (District 13)  
Thomas M. Coyne, M.D., Ph.D. (District 8)  Dan Schebler (District 1) 
Cassie Boggs, M.D. (District 7) Wendy Lavezzi, M.D. (District 5 & 24) 
Robert Pfalzgraf, M.D. (District 4) Tim Crutchfield (District 4) 
Jeffrey Brokaw (District 4) Bruce Goldberger, Ph. D. (District 8)   
David Winterhalter (District 12)                                  Lora Kenniff (District 12) 
Shawn Walker (District 12)                                        Patricia Wheaton (District 21)  
Melissa Pope (District 13)                                          Chrissy Nieten (District 1) 
Nick Washburn (District 1)                                         Amy Jones (District 4) 
Tera A. Jones, M.D. (District 5 & 24)                         Bill Pellan (District 6) 
Karla Orozco (District 7)                                            Daniel Wardman (District 7)  
Zo Overton-Hennessy (District 7)                              Shanedelle S. Norford, M.D. (District 5) 
Natalia Belova, M.D. (District 15)                              Ralph Saccone (District 15) 
Thomas Steinkamp (District 17)                                Sherri Blanton (District 9 & 25) 
 

Guests present: 

Jenaye Mack, M.D. (UF Pathology)  Brittany Hill (LifeLink of Florida)  
Tinene Alter (NMS Labs) Nick Cleary (LifeLink of Florida)   



MEC Meeting Minutes 
November 4, 2022 
Page 2 

 

 
Linda McCluskey (LifeLink of Florida)  Concha Prieto (FL- DOSE DOH) 
Richard Howard (LifeQuest                                       DiAnn McCormack (CorneaGen) 
James Rosa (Lions Eye Institute)                              Chris Poindexter(LifeNet) 
Eric Calhoun (LifeNet)                                               Michael Truver (University of Florida)   
Amy Wilson (LifeNet)                                                 Joshua Mott (Volusia Sheriff’s Office) 
Phil Roberts (Axis Forensic Toxicology)  
 

A MOTION WAS MADE, SECONDED, AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY FOR THE COMMISSION TO 
APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
A MOTION WAS MADE, SECONDED, AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY FOR THE COMMISSION TO 
APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MAY 13, 2022 MEDICAL EXAMINERS COMMISSION MEETING. 
 
 
ISSUE NUMBER 1: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
 

• Commission Chairman Dr. Nelson announced that former District 23 Medical Examiner Predrag 
Bulic, M.D., passed away on July 23, 2022.  

 

• New District 23 Medical Examiner: Dr. Nelson informed the Commission that State Attorney RJ 
Larizza appointed Dr. Jon Thogmartin as interim District 23 Medical Examiner and will be 
responsible for the operation of the office going forward until such time as they're ready for a 
search committee. 

 

• Commission Chairman Dr. Nelson announced that Dr. Riazul Imami received a proclamation from 
the Charlotte County Commission honoring Dr. Imami as the medical examiner who has been 
there since August of 1972. Charlotte County also declared March 22, 2022 as Dr. Imami Day.  

 
• Status Report: MEC Appointment and Reappointments:  Bureau Chief Brett Kirkland informed the 

Commission that the reappointment paperwork for Dr. Stephen J. Nelson, Dr. Barbara C. Wolf, 
and Mrs. Robin Giddens Sheppard are in the Governor’s Appointments Office and they have 
everything they need for those reappointments.  Additionally, the appointment paperwork for the 
County Commissioner seat as well as the vacant State Attorney and Sheriff seats have been 
submitted to the Governor’s Appointments Office and they have everything they need for the 
appointments. Dr. Kirkland also informed that a letter has been sent to the Florida Association of 
Counties listing an additional candidate for consideration along with Commissioner Carol 
Whitmore, the other candidate who was originally submitted to the governor's office is no longer 
a county commissioner. We are currently awaiting approvals from the Governor’s Appointments 
Office.   

 

• Status Report: DME Appointments and Reappointments:  Mr. Kirkland informed the Commission 
that all District Medical Examiners are currently pending either appointment or reappointment.  
The Governor’s Appointments Office has stated they have received all necessary paperwork for 
the appointments and reappointments.  We are currently awaiting approvals from the Governor’s 
Appointments Office. Mr. Kirkland advised that he has personally reached out to the Governor’s 
Appointments Office and indicated the need to make these appointments as this is becoming a 
recruitment and retention issue and there are some medical examiners who are district medical 
examiners who are years into the process of still being interim medical examiners and conveyed 
the importance. Dr. Nelson asked that Mr. Kirkland bring the Commission and members up to 
speed in regards to what the Governor’s Appointments Office actions are with the Department of 
Health. Mr. Kirkland advised that during his conversation with the Governor’s Appointments 
Office, they stated that they were trying to get some additional information from the Department 



MEC Meeting Minutes 
November 4, 2022 
Page 3 

 

 
of Health. Mr. Kirkland advised that he indicated that we were not aware of that additional 
requirement and staff had already done what they were required to do. The only information he 
was given was that they were possibly doing it at the request of the Governor. No other information 
was provided.  

• District 2 Medical Examiner Vacancy:  Dr. Nelson informed the Commission that the District 2 
Medical Examiner Search Committee has had several organizational meetings so far and the 2nd 
Judicial Circuit has retained Dr. Jon Thogmartin to assist with the search for a new medical 
examiner.  Dr. Stewart has indicated that he wants to retire.   

• District 8 Medical Examiner Vacancy:  Dr. Nelson informed the commission a search committee 
has been formed in response to Dr. Hamilton’s retirement. The position has been posted on the 
FAME website. Dr. Nelson advised that they have had a couple of meetings and will keep the 
commission updated on what's happening with the District 8 Medical Examiner search. 

• District 22 Medical Examiner Vacancy:  Dr. Wolf informed the commission that, in light of Dr. 
Imami’s retirement, a search committee has been organized and they have had several meetings 
including another scheduled for that afternoon. Dr. Wolf advised that the position has yet been 
posted anywhere. 

• 2021 Interim Drugs in Deceased Persons Report: Mrs. Megan Neel informed the Commission 
that data has been received from all districts and sent to the Quality Assurance Committee (QAC).  
The QAC has returned the data and it has been sent out to all the districts for corrections. Mrs. 
Neel advised that she is just waiting on the data to get back so that she can start getting the report 
compiled. Mrs. Neel expressed her gratitude towards Dr. Russell Vega for helping. Dr. Nelson 
recognized the work that the committee has done in providing accurate information and stated 
that it is the closes thing to real time data that is provided to multiple entities.  

 

• 2021 Annual MEC Reports:  Mrs. Neel informed the Commission that she has received all the 
data for the Annual Workload Report. Everything starting to be compiled.  Mrs. Neel advised that 
she is just waiting on the final death numbers from Department of Health so that she can start 
running the report. Mrs. Neel thanked everyone for working with her to move the data submission 
date up by a month.  
 

• 2021 Paul Coverdell Forensic Science Improvement Grant Program Status Update:  Mrs. Ashley 
Williams reported that there are 16 districts participating in the grant and the allotment total is 
$51,440. The awarded packages were emailed to the participating districts on May 17, 2022. 
Physical copies of the MOUs were mailed by the grant manager to participating districts on May 
17, 2022. All participating districts are authorized to purchase items on their expenditure list.  
 

• 2022 Paul Coverdell Forensic Science Improvement Grant Program Status Update:  Mrs. Williams 
reported that solicitation for proposals were mailed out on January 6, 2022. The MEC staff 
received proposals from 14 districts. The M.E. allotment total is $50,213. And funds are not 
expected to be released by the Bureau for Justice Assistance (BJA) until 2023. Mrs. Williams 
advised not begin purchasing until authorized by staff. 
 

• Postmortem Toxicology Lab Director’s Meeting Update:  Dr. Goldberg informed the Commission 
that representatives from the University of Florida, Axis Forensics, NMS Labs, Broward County, 
Pinellas County, Steward Reference Lab, the Miami-Dade Medical Examiner’s Office, Statewide 
Intelligence Office, and Statewide Prosecutor met virtually on July 21, 2022.  Dr. Goldberger said 
that they had a really good discussion about the state of toxicology in the State of Florida. Dr. 
Nelson suggested that it would be beneficial to have someone from the Drug Enforcement 
Administration to participate.  
 



MEC Meeting Minutes 
November 4, 2022 
Page 4 

 

 
ISSUE NUMBER 2: UNIDENTIFIED DECEASED INITIATIVE 
 
 

Mrs. Williams reported the following success story from District 15:  
 
Human remains were discovered tied up in the mangroves with a wire to a tree in North Palm Beach 
by Singer Island in Palm Beach County in 1974. An examination at the time revealed the remains 
belong to ab approximately 14-year old white female. The remains were maintained elsewhere until 
2014 when there were turned over to District 15- Palm Beach County Medical Examiner's Office. 
Mitochondrial DNA samples were obtained and sent into NAMUS. Subsequently the remains were 
submitted for an osteological exam and a forensic dental evaluation. None of these led to a positive 
identification at that time.  
 
On March 18, 2022, the Palm Beach County Medical Examiner's Office was advised by the Palm 
Beach County Sheriff's Office that the remains have been identified via DNA as a 17-year-old white 
female named Susan Gail Poole, DOB: 02/12/1957. The Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office had 
been in touch with Poole’s family (mother, brother and sister) and they reported she went missing in 
1972. Poole's mother provided a DNA standard, which confirmed Poole’s identity. Susan Gail Poole 
was released from the Palm Beach County Medical Examiner's Office on June 2, 2022 via funeral 
home to Poole’s sister, bringing the identification of the case to a close. The Palm Beach County 
Sheriff's Office believes Poole was one of the victims slain by Gerard Schaefer, a police officer who 
was also a serial killer. Schaefer was stabbed to death in prison in 1995. 
 
 

ISSUE NUMBER 3: EMERGING DRUGS 
 
 
Bruce Goldberger, Ph.D., provided the Commission with an update on new drug trends. Fentanyl, 
nitazenes, designer benzodiazepines, N,N-dimethylpentylone, and xylazines continue to appear in 
Florida. Dr. Goldberger stated that nitazenes is primarily found in the Pinellas County area of the 
state. He also advised a new drug has emerged, PiHP, a synthetic cathinone stimulant. There have 
been no reported deaths related to PiHP intoxication, however PiHP has been found in drug chemistry 
cases in Broward, Hamilton and Leon counties. Dr. Goldberger informed the commission of a fatal 
outbreak of drug overdoses in Gadsden County over the July 4th weekend, and awaiting the toxicology 
to know if the overdoses involved PiHP or just Fentanyl.  Dr. Goldberger advised that since PiHP is 
a cathinone, it should be easily detected during a general toxicology screen unlike nitazenes. Dr. 
Nelson inquired how nitazenes were being produced. Dr. Goldberger advised that the nitazenes were 
likely being produced in China and finding it way to the United States for distribution and not being 
produced in home labs.  
 
The Commission directed staff to work with Dr. Goldberger to develop a list of concerning designer 
benzodiazepines for potential scheduling on the State’s controlled substance list. Commission 
member Nick Cox agreed to disseminate the list to the Attorney General’s Office. 
 
 

ISSUE NUMBER 4: OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 

• Dr. Nelson presented former MEC staff member Steven (Chad) Lucas with a signed resolution 
and read its contents into the record.  

 
WHEREAS, the Medical Examiners Commission was created in 1970 by the passage of 
Chapter 406, Part I, Florida Statutes, also known as the Medical Examiners Act; and, 
 



MEC Meeting Minutes 
November 4, 2022 
Page 5 

 

 
WHEREAS, this Commission plays a vital role in support of Florida’s criminal justice system, to 
the families of the deceased in determining the cause and manner of death of their loved ones 
whose deaths come under the jurisdiction of the medical examiner, and by contributing to the 
protection of the public health of the citizens of Florida; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the staff which serves the Medical Examiners Commission is housed within and 
supported by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Steven (Chad) Lucas has served the citizens of Florida for 4 years, and joined 
the staff of the Medical Examiners Commission in 2018; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Lucas’s dedication to the Medical Examiners Commission has highlighted the 
accomplishments of the many district medical examiner offices in their continued efforts to 
resolve unidentified deceased; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Lucas has conducted thorough and insightful investigations into complaints 
against medical examiners, showing compassion for family members while maintaining the 
integrity of Florida’s medical examiner system; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Lucas has enriched the Medical Examiners Commission and staff with his 
knowledge and professionalism. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, let it be resolved that this Commission on behalf of Florida’s medical 
examiners, the medical-legal community, and all of the citizens of Florida whom he has served 
so well, does hereby recognize and commend Mr. Steven (Chad) Lucas for the dedication and 
valuable service he has offered to the Florida medical examiners system and hopes that he 
maintains his success in future endeavors. 
 
PASSED AND RECORDED, in the official minutes of the Medical Examiners Commission 
meeting on this Wednesday, the 27th day of July, 2022, in Orlando, Orange County, Florida. 

 
 

• Mr. Kirkland requested for official Commission support to develop a proposal to seek funding for 
the publicly funded toxicology labs using the Attorney General's Opioid settlement money in order 
to outfit those laboratories with high resolution mass spectrometers or other equipment.  

 
A MOTION WAS MADE, SECONDED, AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY FOR THE COMMISSION TO 
SUPPORT THE PROPOSAL TO SEEK FUNDING FOR PUBLICLY FUNDED TOXICOLOGY LABS 
USING THE OPIOID SETTLEMENT.  

 
Dr. Nelson asked Mr. Kirkland for clarification in regards to the proposal being for publicly funded 
toxicology labs or all toxicology labs. Mr. Kirkland advised that at this time, he was moving forward 
with the proposal for publicly funded labs because he does not know if there is access for the for-
profit labs. Dr. Nelson asked for further clarification as to a publicly funded county lab verses an 
independent contracted lab that is publicly funded. Dr. Kirkland informed that those labs would be 
included in the proposal. Dr. Goldberger advised that there are only 3 toxicology labs that would 
not be included, two labs outside the state and one within the state that is considered to be for-
profit (NMS labs, Axis Forensic Toxicology and Steward Labs). 
 
Mr. Nick Cox informed the Commission that the funds are being controlled by the legislators and 
the Governor, and is unaware how much is being controlled by the Attorney General. He stated 
that they may need to reach out to the Governor with the proposal as well. Mr. Cox asked to be 
abstained from voting since he is sitting on behalf of the Attorney General.  
 



MEC Meeting Minutes 
November 4, 2022 
Page 6 

 

 
District 1 Medical Examiner Dr. Deanna Oleske asked what percentage of Florida is served by 
publicly funded labs versus the for-profit labs? Both Dr. Goldberger and Mr. Kirkland stated that 
they do not have the number.  Dr. Oleske also inquired about how districts that use privately 
funded, for-profit labs would have access to use the equipment obtained by the settlement money. 
Mr. Kirkland advised that unfortunately he does not have the answer to her question because 
they are still in the initial stage of finding out whether or not the Opioid Settlement would be a 
potential funding source. Furthermore, Mr. Kirkland stated that he was seeking approval from the 
Commission before proceeding with the proposal to the Attorney General’s Office.  
 
Mr. Ken Jones amended his original motion to grant Commission Staff permission to pursue the 
proposal to utilize funding from the Opioid Settlement and then bring back up at a later time for 
discussion. Dr. Nelson advised that at this time the proposal would be exploratory to see whether 
or not the Commission could even tap into the Opioid settlement and if so, how much could be 
garnered and where the money would go. 
 

A MOTION WAS MADE, SECONDED, AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY FOR THE COMMISSION TO 
APPROVE THE PROPOSAL TO THE ATTORNEY GENERAL’S OFFICE TO SEEK FUNDING FROM 
THE OPIOID SETTLEMENT.  

 

• Mr. Nick Cox addressed the Commission on behalf of Edward Tellechea, the Chief of 
Administrative Law in the Attorney General’s Office. Mr. Cox stated that according to Mr. 
Tellechea, his office has received notice of multiple deaths involving gluteal fat transfers, better 
known as Brazilian butt lifts. Mr. Cox continued to explain that when these procedures are done, 
the fat transfer is supposed to go under the skin but not invade the fascia that covers the muscle 
because otherwise it will immobilize and there have been deaths reported where there has been 
lung embolism. Mr. Cox explained the concern is a licensing aspect and the Attorney General’s 
Office is running into problems with medical examiners not determining whether or not the fascia 
was invaded with fat during autopsies. Mr. Cox stated that by determining if the fascia was invaded 
with fat, they could show cause of death was due to the improper procedure that was performed 
during the gluteal fat transfer. Mr. Cox stated that Mr. Edward Tellechea request was whether or 
not the Commission could help in the sense of trying to encourage medical examiners to include 
this as a part of their examinations.  
 
Dr. Nelson discussed the gluteal fat transfer procedures, advising that the Board of Medicine has 
a rule that doctors cannot remove more than 1,000 CCs of fat for reinjection anywhere and the 
issue has been that doctors are reinjecting more fat.  Dr. Nelson also stated that Dade County 
has had two private surgeons that are with the American Board of Plastic Surgery oversight 
boards and they will travel to autopsies and participate in the autopsy as to how the procedure 
was done. Dr. Nelson stated that he would like to know more information in regards to what 
districts are the issues because that has not been his experience with Dade County because they 
do invite aforementioned surgeons into the morgue when those cases occur to provide their 
technical expertise to the autopsy pathologist. Dr. Nelson advised that the Commission could 
certainly reach out the surgeons to see if they would be interested or willing to travel to other 
districts to provide assistance in the autopsies when the cases occur.  
 
Mr. Cox stated that Mr. Tellechea would contact Dr. Nelson to provide more details in regards to 
the issues and if there is any action that the Commission could take. Mr. Charlie Cofer advised 
that once more information was gathered, that this request might be something more amendable 
to an educational issue.  
 

With no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting was adjourned at 10:58 
A.M. 

 



LEE MILLER OBITU ARY  

MILLER, Lee R. M.D. born on Shelton 

Court, Rockville Centre, Feb. 23, 1937 to 

Dr. Henry I. and May (Gans) Miller, 

passed away peacefully at home, Sept. 

21, 2022 in Lutz, FL. on the autumnal 

equinox. A graduate of South Side High 

School, the University of Michigan and 

NYU School of Medicine, and trained as 

a forensic pathologist, he was, for many 

years the pipe-smoking medical 

examiner for the city of Tampa. He will 

be missed by his colleagues for his wry 

sense of humor and dry wit, by his life-

long friends, some dating back to 

kindergarten, and by cousins, Barbara 

and Ellen Gans. He will be especially, 

and sorely, missed by his brother, Sandy 

(Samuel L. Miller, M.D.). 
Published by Tampa Bay Times from Oct. 2 to Oct. 3, 2022. 

 



HEATHER L. JONES 
CHIEF ASSISTANT STATE ATTORNEY 

September 27, 2022 

BRIAN S. KRAMER 
STATE ATTORNEY 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA 
SERVING 

ALACHUA, BAKER, BRADFORD, GILCHRIST, LEVY 
AND UNION COUNTIES 

Dr. Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P. 
Chairman, Medical Examiners Commission 
P.O. Box 1489 
Tallahassee, FL 32302-1489 
(850) 410-8600 

Dear Dr. Nelson: 

120 WEST UNIVERSITY AVENUE 
GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA 32601 

TELEPHONE (352) 374 - 3670 

PLEASE REPLY TO: 

Pursuant to your letter of April 15 appointing me as the Chair of the District 8 Medical 
Examiner Search Committee (hereinafter ''the Committee"), this letter is to inform you that the 
District 8 Medical Examiner Search Committee has conducted and concluded the required search 
for candidates for the District 8 Medical Examiner. The District 8 Medical Examiner Search 
Committee hereby nominates Dr. Thomas Coyne, M.D. to the State of Florida Medical Examiner 
Commission for submission to the Governor for appointment as the next District 8 Medical 
Examiner. 

Following your appointment, I empaneled the Committee with members from the 
University of Florida Medical School, including the Dean, the applicable Sheriffs, the Public 
Defender, the appropriate Board of County Commissioners, other representatives from the law 
enforcement community, and members of the funeral services community. The Committee held 
multiple appropriately noticed public meetings. The Committee sought applicants who are 
licensed physicians and experienced practitioners of pathology per the Florida Administrative 
Code, Chapter 11 G-5.004. To that end, the Committee issued a solicitation through multiple 
sources for applicants for this position. Following that solicitation, the Committee established an 
interview team of greater than 3 participants which included myself, the Public Defender, 
members of law enforcement, staff from the University of Florida's Department of Medicine, 
including the Dean of the University of Florida's Medical School, and representatives from the 
funeral and mortuary services community. 

At the conclusion of the search period of more than 30 days, the Committee received one 
application from Dr. Thomas Coyne, M.D. The Committee members sought comment from 
county medical associations, employment references, local hospitals, government agencies and 
funeral homes with which Dr. Coyne had a prior working relationship including information on 
work performance and working relationships, as well as Dr. Coyne's reasons for and 



HEATHER L. JONES 
CH~F ASSISTANT STATE ATIORNEY 

October 18, 2022 

Dr. Thomas Coyne, M .D. 
3217 SW 47th Avenue 
Gainesville, FL 32608 

BRIAN S. KRAMER 
STATE ATTORNEY 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA 
SERVING 

ALACHUA, BAKER, BRADFORD, GILCHRIST, LEVY 
AND UNION COUNTIES 

Via Electronic Mail and United States Mail 

IN RE: APPOINTMENT AS INTERIM MEDICAL EXAMINER 

Dear. Dr. Coyne. 

120 WEST UNIVERSITY AVENUE 
GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA 32601 

TELEPHONE (352) 374 - 3670 

PLEASE REPLY TO: 

Pursuant to the authority granted to me in Florida Statute §406.15 as State Attorney of the 
81h Judicial Circuit of Florida, with jurisdiction over Alachua County, I hereby appoint you as 
Interim Medical Examiner for District 8 effective October 17, 2022. You succeed Dr. Hamilton 
who retired effective October 17, 2022. 

I want to thank you for your tremendous service. I know you will continue to serve us 
well as Interim District 8 Medical Examiner. This appointment will remain in effect until a new 
District 8 Medical Examiner is appointed . 

~ i ;L-~~---.... ----~-
Brian S. Kramer 
State Attorney 
gth Judicial Circuit of Florida 

Cc: Governor Ron DeSantis 
The Honorable Mark W. Moseley 
Board of Alachua County Commissioners 
Stephen J. Nelson, M .D. 
Stacy A. Scott, Public Defender, 8111 Judicial Circuit 



circumstances ofleaving employment. The University of Florida Police Department conducted 
an appropriate criminal background check of Dr. Coyne. That background check failed to reveal 
any matter of concern to the Committee. 

The Committee interviewed the sole applicant for the position, Dr. Thomas Coyne, M.D. 
Prior to the interview, the Committee provided a copy of the contract between the Alachua 
County Board of County Commissioners, the University of Florida, and the District 8 Medical 
Examiner to Dr. Coyne for his review. In addition, Dr. Coyne was provided a copy of the 
current budget for the District 8 Medical Examiner. During the interview, Dr. Coyne received 
questions regarding the sufficiency of the budget and general acceptability of the anangement of 
contractual services between the University of Florida, the BOCC, and the District 8 Medical 
Examiner's Office. Dr. Coyne represented to the committee that he agrees with both the contract 
and the budget. Following the interview, the Committee voted unanimously to recommend to 
the State of Florida Medical Examiners Commission that the Governor of the State of Florida 
appoint Dr. Coyne as the next District 8 Medical Examiner upon the resignation of Dr. William 
Hamilton. 

Please find included with this letter pe1tinent correspondence regarding Dr. Coyne; 
results of background inquiries; letters of reference; and a letter from Dr. Coyne to the 
Commission staff authorizing the release of information from former employers and the Board of 
Medicine in the state in which Dr. Coyne is or was licensed. 

I am honored that you chose me to conduct this important work. Please do not hesitate to 
contact me if there is anything fu1ther that you need. 

Brian S. Kramer, State Attorney, 8th Judicial Circuit 

Attachments: Dr Coyne Documents for Submission.pdf 

CC: See the Attached List. 



Courtesy Copies: 

Dr. Hamilton, hamilwf@.ufl.edu 
Dr. Jennifer Hunt jenniferhunt@ufl.edu 
Dr Bruce Goldberger Qoldbebaf@.pathology.ufl.edu 
Megan Neel MeganNeel@fdle.state.fl.us 
Richard Camacho ricardocamacho@utl.edu 
Steven Lucas StevenChadLucas@.fdle.state.fi. us 
Brett Kirkland BrettKirkland@fdle.state.fl.us 
Vickie Koenig VickieKoenig@fdle.state.fl.us 
James Martin Esq.JamesMartin@fdle.state.fl.us 
Stacy Scott scotts@PD08.0RG 
Bill Miller millerw@pdo8.org 
Clovis Watson Jr.(sheriffwatson@acso.us) 
Tara Malone tmalone@acso.us 
Jesse Sandusky isanduskvJG,apd.cityofalachua.org 

µ 

Antoine Sheppard asheppard@highspringspd.com 
Ed Book ed.bookc@sfcollege.edu 
Ryan Woods rvan.woods@sfcollege.edu 
Scotty Rhoden srhodenfa{bakerso.com 
Gordon Smith gordon smith@bradfordsheriff.org 
Heather Hogg hhoog@lionseyeinstitute.org; 
Kurt Reis kurt Reis@lifenethealth.org; 
V. Thornton VThornton@LegacyDSFoundation.com; 
Bobby Schultz bschultz@gcso.us 
Linda Stump lstump@utledu 
Brad Whitehead sheriff@unionsheriff.us; 
Rose Bedell rbedell@ifdf.org; 
Bart Knowles bartknowles@ufl.edu 
Deborah Hold HoltDL(ajcityofaainesville.org 
Courtney Barreca cbarreca@alachuasheriff.org 
Brooke Willis brooke. willis(a).willistonpolice.org; 
Lonnie Scott Sr ScottL@cityofa.ainesville.org -William Turner williamturnerheathl@.gmail.com; 
Rev Jane Broy rev.ianebroy@~.;mail.com; 
A. Williams alndapwilliams@gmail.com; 
Pamela Burrow BurrowPR@cityofgainesville.org 



HEATHER L JONES 120 WEST UNIVERSITY AVENUE 
CH§:F ASSISTANT STATE ATTORNEY GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA 32601 

BRIAN s. KRAMER TELEPHONE (352) 374 - 3670 

STATE ATTORNEY 
EIGHTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA 

SERVING 
ALACHUA, BAKER, BRAOFORD. GILCHRIST, LEVY PLEASE REPLY TO: 

AND UNION COUNTIES 

October 18, 2022 

Dr. Thomas Coyne, M.D. 
3217 SW 47111 Avenue 
Gainesville, FL 32608 

Via Electronic Mail and United States Mail 

IN RE: APPOINTMENT AS INTERIM MEDICAL EXAMINER 

Dear. Dr. Coyne. 

Pursuant to the authority granted to me in Florida Statute §406.15 as State Attorney of the 
8th Judicial Circuit of Florida, with jurisdiction over Alachua County, I hereby appoint you as 
Interim Medical Examiner for District 8 effective October 17, 2022. You succeed Dr. Hamilton 
who retired effective October 17, 2022. 

I want to thank you for your tremendous service. I know you will continue to serve us 
well as Interim District 8 Medical Examiner. This appointment will remain in effect until a new 
District 8 Medical Examiner is appointed. 

Sincerely, _ <J 4 _ 
~/)-~- -
Brian S. Kramer 
State Attorney 
8th Judicial Circuit of Florida 

Cc: Governor Ron DeSantis 
The Honorable Mark W. Moseley 
Board of Alachua County Commissioners 
Stephen J. Nelson, M.D. 
Stacy A. Scott, Public Defender, 8th Judicial Circuit 



. . . . ~- . ·-~ . 
. · ·.· .. ·: : 

. ·. : 

........ . ·,: " ... . 

>-· .·· . . ::/i .'·:·~·:_-:_·_._-- .· ,:ihp.~:k~'rv1_·/.:c6yn/: M,b:;_ .P.h,Oi: --; '.<, ·. ·: ' ·. · ,, .. · · · 
.'Associa\~·Mei:!ic~_I gxamin.er/Clihicaf Assoc,~te _Professor:•· · _·: ·; . :·:. 

Office of.Jhei Oistrict .8 M~dic.al Examin~r . . . , .. •. °' 
__ · . . . . :· · . . . fo.tensic. ·Medicihe DiJision · .. . . . . _ . 
. . . . •' Department of .Pathology,. lrtih'llJnology; and Lqborafo/y ·Meaiclrie 
. · ': /.:.;- . ·: i\Unive.rsity of fl0Ji9a Co_lJege ?f M~d_i¢ine_;- .'. ._ :::·: .. ::· · 

· · . · ··321·1 -sw·4.7_•h .A --. · 

·.·-. 
-: ·.,,. .· 
. ·- . : ~ .. . 
··,: .·. 

. . · . _ ... .. . :-. . . · . . v_e._ ·:;: . 
. · : '. .Gainesville·, 'FL -32608 . ·, =·-: 

·-.. Pho·ne: (3s2)·2-13~~92·92· ::_ 
J .: ~-rn91l:Coyrfot@l)f(.~d~ .: ; 

•• .,. ·1 · ·-t . •, . . . . .. 
, . .. ; .. . 

· .. :, 
. .. 

···'· 

. • ... ; 

• · ·:: . ... ' 

. .. :j. 

. . •.' 

........ ) 
.. · ... . . ·: : •' 

. ,; .·.~- .. ":. ;' ., .. 

·_::.'EDUCATION: -. 

C?ll,~g~:; 
. ·. ·.· · 

.· ': . _··, <·: ·. · ME}rCer¢ou11ty Co.rrtmur\iiy Coll~g~ \ ; · ·:: ·.-_ . ,. 
:· . ·.·_.. --. · .. . West Windsor, NJ . . · · · , , .. _. : _ · 

: ,:.:<_-.A~;, Ch.~n,i.i~tQ-:.~ ;99?: ::·: ·: :· ... : / \ __ .. •' ··, f.: 
... .. . '": 

· .... 

.: · ,·· ... : 
./ -·.,.,._·,_·> .. :-·:Rutgers,.the.S,tateUni;~~sity .ofNJ · _; · .·.:._~-

.· .• :.:. ·.·. . Piscataway, NJ · :·. :· · .· ,. __ . ·. -= -_· :_ · 

·.· ' . .1,_.: ·:.· . .-.~ ···.·. ~.-PJ\:·o. ··10xrco10JJ.Y:~··2006:. ·: ·· ·· _. 
. . . '. . . 

: _:>:; '. :_>::'.Utv1DNJ~ R.ob:e:rt_ W6o_d_ Jbtins~~ Ntedic~i":~~(1001:_ 
.. ·... . -Pisqataway, N.J. ·· · · . . .- ::· · · . ·· 

.- . :.M:b-7_.?069 ·;. ·- .. __ '.·.·-: ,.-· 
.. • ·- .· ... 

· · .... ·. 

. ,··. 
•' ., 

,'.·· .. . .... . . . 
· . .. : ·. , :'"-

-POSTGRADlJA1ETRAINING:·· ·' '-'· · .. . -:-:, . · ... ::: · .:--.:··', ··<·, 

.' He$ideh.GY~ :. ..• ..... ·_· ·: .:: :_ · ._·: \. :_ 0ospital~it"iie U~ive~~-sity of P~nn_syl~:ani~ .•·:2 . 
. . ~.. ..~. · . : .. Philadelphia, ,PA . ·- . ... · · ._,.\ · -· 

-:· . . . · ·· .. ' ,, Aoato,mic arid Clinfcal .Pathology._":" 2009~20)0: , ·: . _. · . ' .. ' : : . . . . . . . . . . - . . . . . : . 

. :: ::···· ·_, ··UMD~J~Rcibert·W.6od\1ohnsb~ ·Medi{ar"~icho.6i' .. · 
:_ . ·-:' N~v./si-uniwiok, NJ'•"' .; ·:. :··.. . ~ ;'· .. . . .:,_ ·_; .. , ·:· . 

·_·. :·,.; An.atcimJc P~thology_.:. :2010-20:1-1 .. 

' . . '_, i .· ; >~~-:~~::Po:f~h.\~n-·iv.tsrx:Pf P,e_n?s_· yi~f n,!c1·_: __ . .. ·.··.·' 
.. ·· .. :; : :t_ -.· .. 

. . . . ':A~ato.mlc q{ld:·N.eJropatholc>gy 7'. ~011.-,201 f ;'" .. 
. < ;. . • .. ... . ' . ·-:-: . : • . ' . •. . . . . . ':. . . . . ·: " 

. ··-::• 

· ... · .. , : 

_:FeUowihipi'. Mia·mi~Oade Meid'fcf!I Ex~hnin~~r-Oepar.t_r.n·e.n( · 
-Miami FL . . . . : . . 

·. foren~ic :P~tholog-y .;-~?.~:3~20 / -· 

.. , .,.: ;· 

'. 



'•. · . . . : ' .· · . . . . 
: •" • 

'• : - • ... . 
• -· ,'t : 

·. , .... ,· 

: ' ·: .·.: . . . . . , ... : ' ., ..... ; ~ 

· .: .:. ~AS
0

S_6.:ci~t~)·v1~dfc~1ix~h1in~}j\: ./. : / · ·.'.f -l;)is_tri9t 8, $tai~_~f:_Florjqa/ 
.· .. ·clinfcarAs.~,cicia.t~i.ProJ~s.sbr' :< ·: :• ./.' : .,:, >:V n'iyer'sity:of .FJorida .. . ·.:; 

·· ·. . . .·July· 2022 ~present • . ' 
. ,• ': . ~ . ;_ , . : ' . . 

' -.. ;, 

. Assocfate Mei[ic~I Examiner 
,;. ,• 

. .' ·:District 14,· s(at~· bf -F'lo.~·;J~ ' .. /::· . '., 
•· _' :·~·a/qb'.:2Q2;2.:?:M.ar~~2~ .. :. \ '. ><::· ,. 

· -OisJri<;:t,.21 ; SJataof Flor.id-a . 
, .•. , ;Japqary 20 ~.~·_:__ Februl\lry202~.--· 

.. ~ . ,. . . . . .. . ·. ·-·. . ·. 

,. : .. :.<,·.bi~trict,.21, St~te.of.F.ior'i~i~ · .:•· ,: · .. Assoc_iat~),1eidJca.i Exain(n'er •. :; 
. . . . . : . . . . .. . ·, ,·· 

. .. , . ':' .. :: , .. ·:. ..··:'.-Jul{i014'.,..0~cember·2SJ17 ·-:-._ .. . · 
. '· .. . . . ~ .. . • . 

. BOARD'CERTIFICATION: 
: . .. 

> ;Na.tion?ti B.oqrd o(Medic,al i~~~ine:rf 

: ; • ', -:_ .. ' :::;,:Arn.eflcan's'·o~rd:'c,t Pathology :., ..•. 
·. : ·. : ·. . . : '.·. Ana'tomicPathQIOgy .... _; . . . .. , . . . . . . 

, . : .: 

• ·. Airieric~n :s6a:r'rif:¢f -P,a(h.ology < 
·. . .. N.europ~thology . · .. . . 

. ··. . . ,. .' : . 

·:/. -Arnei-icaM Bqafd. of'P~thQlogy . . . .. 
. . C.: : ·: .... : fot:e.nsic Patho]_ogy . 

· t·;\iE6f~;:Lii~~sdR~ ,.: .. ·:~ 

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZAT IONS:· ·:. 
' ·: · , ,· : .· 

·. ·' . . '' ... . ... -~ . 

.· .. , · . 

201:4 . . 

• • • • '•• , • l 

. :' SpGi~tyfo,r Net,ir.osci~0ce. :::: \ ·: ...- . •: ·. · : .. : . ··-·· . .. , 
. . : : . .. . 

·. $.odet)!:ot-ToxJ.colpgy. ,·:: ·. ·':' · .. <>- ·· .<. · 
.. :;-_ '. lnt,err:ia:tion:a1·.sodety, fQ.t' $tern ,Celf Researqfr . 

. .. 'Alph.a.·om~g.a.Alph·a (t0ireot}'•': _ _: ·, .· ·. :· ·. ·' · · .. · 
... : . . . _·:~9lg; ~~n:a.~J$~~tH,tinor*Q~i.~Jk ,(?ur..~.~~9.:i._:>::: 

· ::'.·",,;<_. · A.menca.n-Med1cal.As.s.0Q1atlo1\ , .. :·. · ·: .. ·.,, .. ,, . 
· · • , . ·: .·· ... Ame:Hc.ari Meoicaf.StudintA$.socl~tiQri' '.:/ '·;: . . ·:· ·;: .. · ':.' 

»: . C.o!IE?~fe' pf Aroiflca,n .pat-holog[sfs' . :·,(: .. :·.:;; ·;_. ~ ',\ :·· . . 
'.Anieric~h: Ac;;~~!3my qf.f.oreni,iiG Sc.ie.f.iGe$ (cuirentf .. : 

: Arnerio~n'.A-ssocj~tiori:_9( ~fewr9p~thologists (cur-rent) ... •/,: , .. :,.:- ; 
·: FldridaAs!3,odaJion of Me.dic~i Exariiin~r~.-(currer\t) ' ·. · 
. •' Nation~:, As.i'PGiitlon .of Me¢i.caFExa'itliher$ -(turren.t)-

!. · ..... • . :. ~:··.·· : . . · ~ : . . : ... · . . ... . . . . . . •. . 

·. ··. 
. : . ~· :·-=~ 

•, . ' .: .. : 
. ~ . . . ~ .. 

. ~-:· __ ,..·· ~: 
. . ~ •_. . . . 

' . :·:. , '· 

:,.: . ·; .. .. .. .. 
: .r ."-'-· .. ·;"· .. 

+ • • •..: · 

.· . ' . . 

·•.• · . ·: 
• ~ · • , , · . .... + • ' 

. . . . . , 
•.: ·• 
.•· . "'· : 

· .. · .. . , • 

,·;•: :-

.. . . . ,, .: 
.. ··· 
. ·'-; :· . .. . . 

' . ... · .. .. 
". 

.. ' :' 

,, . .. 



. , .· ' .. . . 

. . , • .·.· 
•• • • * • • 

. : .,. . ·"... . :· . ·~ . . 
. : . : \:: ... : : . . .. .. .... , , 

;, : . 

':"':'MAJciR+EAC.HIN'G ~ND,CLi'r~tCAL RES~6NSIBIUJIES::·, ,' .,. •,• .. · -'· · -· 

.·· ,' '.< .G.ue~t:rnst~u-ct~/Atjva~-~:ed 'trrjury/Deat~-;n;e.stig~ii:~h ;C;·~-S~-. :: ;:.::_·:.:::.'.,,-?· -, · .. ', ' ·'., <.·· . 
. ·. : ·swl=LPwblic'Safety Academy·::.. 2_01tHo prese.nC ;_ .: ·. · · .. : ; '" . .' :. · .· . .- ,. "~- ' . ..;~·-. . . .. 

• : • • • • • • •. r • .. ~ • •• • .,. • ._ : .: • •, •• .._ • :I : • ' 

. . G.u~~t lnst_r,uctor, ~re\rial Litigation Class :· · : :-:.- · > '.:. · . :,-:_.· .. 
University of Mia.mi- Ocfobe_r 2013· _. -.. · . -·· · · · ·, .... " 

. · ..... ~. . ·. : 

lns.tr\;Jc·iorj Pa~hophysi9)ogy col)r~e---: ;· :- ' · ·. · .. · . . 
::, UMDNJ :-· _Rol:>ert Wa..oa Joh_nso0 Med(cal School - f0_1 b~,2011 

} .· . . ·. 
.. :·• 

.-·:1nstruc.tor ... ~-ecti'ah;isrns Qf Ois:e·ase tra~smi~sipn ahd:Ther'a°'peutic l~terventions ooµrse 
. University of P~n-~.syJva.nia Sc:hool oJ Medicif1e ~, 2p()9a201 O, . _-. • · · .. ; ·_. _ . . i. :.:: · . . \ _ , . 

: Lectur~l; A~riual Mini-M~o Syrhp6sium '.. . . . ''.; :, .. : .... . ,, .. 
· ·.UMDNJ.:. Rob.er-fWood Johnson Medical SohdoJ .. -~.2007-2009:, ·~. · 

. i_ :r each·l~g-~ss;sta~t~hip',. Depa~~-eri(:~/~h.a't~~¢:;·;;~·~ 'a-~:d +~;it,olo_~;:-.. 
. ·.', Rl/tgers, .th.e. State Univer$ity of-.N.J .:..·zooo~?002 · · : :-

• • • • • • + • • • • • 

.. · .. 
. . '. 

·:. i: Polic,e :M~dicolegal Death l nvestigc1ti◊h Wor~·shop - · ~ , -' ;'- -'· ' .> ·,-<, . <, ;, _, .. ·. : · -; ··· 
. · : Miarni--baoe CoLfrity Medical Ex.am in~~ Oepart,:nenI .,.July. .20Jt ', · ' .·. · · ,; : . · _ . :: .. 

. . : .. ··., :' Bu~~.-~o:n~~~~-n~ Bptany (For:e·~~i.c E;tbM;;iag;;.iit~roeq;o·~/a~(a.o_t~n_y_~;;~-~~s})_~p; \:~_~·_:_. ·:· ... ::·._::. ' '-

. · , University of FJorioa; Ooal~. FL.:..;.; ·_~eptetnpe.112013,·<, .-.. ,_:.: ·: ··.' :_ "\ ·:;-';--_ · · :,. .-. :. · :·/ ,.: ;:-,;- ·- : · · • · - - · 

- . ·:_: : .. : ;~terh.ati~~~l-F9-~ihs;~P~ot~gti:ph;:~;rk~bip ' /-{_: ·_::,,,. _·•._: :.' ... . : •<i.: ~:· i_::: .. ':: \:, . : .. : .· . -.. ~·:- :: '.''. . :· ··_ 
. :·_. Miami-:Dade-:county Medical Exainin.~r Depart,:nent .,.Q_ctober 201$ . · .. · ·, · · '•: · , ... 

. . .. . , . . : .. .. · .. .. ··· ... . . . .. ·.,.. . . 

. . . •·. ' · 

. Edi:tari~i s'oafd .M.errlber., .. Jou·n:laJ ·ot.,~f-orer'.5$iC. ·$c·r~M:ces . . . \ ··.· . 
• • • • • ~ • : .. • ••• • + ~ •• : .. i ·. . •' ". ..: + ·' ... • • ·• ..... 

. ,:.:·· . . . .. .: 

: ' 'President elect: the Flor.ida Association of Medical ·Examine~$ _.. 
' • • • • • • • • • • ' • • • • ' , • • • • ,. • . • . + • • • ' . . • • ~ • • • • 

: • . • , : ~ · .. .. ~ -: · . . ... . .: .•·,:· • · . . :. , \ .'' ' ' i ..... ~ . · • •• :.: · : .: . , .... : 

::-GUE~T.LECT~RES_: . _ _ . :.:- :·.- \-:/ ·. · ._ ·;·: --:.-:'. :._ / :,":.: :.~, ·; · . . .._. .,<;(-·-: ·:'--- ,, _ 
... - 4.2nc:i°Ar.1nua1 .Educational C~r:ifer,enc~ ·of th~ ~lor1d~ Ass.oci~t-ion of M~-cli;;·l·Exari1i~er$;· -: 

:. '. Dayto'naJ:foach, FL_ ...., '.Jil!y·.201·5··· , :_. _. : -~- · --·._ . . ·< .-: : .. __ . ... ·_:\· .·:: . · _ · .. 
·· , Pre?en.ta.tion~: ·••.ca·ruiabis.finduce.d Psy.c.ho$[s" apq '.'. l,Jn@x"pede·d Finding~ frorri the. Brain· . .. · 

,'(:,- ~3.r1t (_fri9ppi~-~ase~}:::- · · · : .. · _. , ... , ... ·, · · · · · ... ·. ,. · :; · ·,: ·... -·, ·. : 

;' 43rd Annual .Ed_u_(iatjonal Cont~rence'.of the· Floriqa Assqc:;ia.tion ofMedi_¢al ·Examiner~ . . ; .: ·,
. ·.· ··: :_- Napies,.·sv.:: jui/2016 ":. '.··· ;._. \ ·>· •·f':';>• .. ·<:: ·,- ':_''.0:- ·-; . . : \ _- :\ •• :':':, · .. ':.:(:·•.:. • · •• :·\-, . i ,=·~ _':':::· ·· :i ":", ·,t; :' .. . 

. •' . . Presentationi: '\Traurnatic BiiUn·1o)ury; :Frorn Concussi'oh to:'blE:i•.a"ndl'.VY,nat's Pt1ase i'G.ot .. 
· _. ·:' .:w:~o. yyun·,!1?".· :_._: >":: ::-_; .. :;.· <. /(.,: .-::: ·:-/:·:· .. ·,-. ·:.-_- · .. ,: ... ,:.: ,_ ·::· .- < :.·· ;;C(_~ i·(< :.'. ··,(-·:·- ?i:\:: .· ~. ·>::_·.: :,_ :·_/ ; . ·._ . 

. . , .. ·: < 45th Annlla( Ed:t:tca,tlo,hal (;6nf~ten°~E\_C;;f 19~.f. iori~~:;Asiq9.i~tiO.'.AiQJ ¥e.'tjita(i;a),~lri_~i~; : ·: 
_ : _HqweY:in,.-Jh.e::-tlills,i~.(~ -J~ly'20-H3: :_:.~.; : </:._ .. -. { >.:_ ·. :.., :,. : '.,.'./ ,::: .·.;.;.:-_:: ':'. < },: :: >>-:/ '· :·.• ... • 
· .-. ·P~es.entaJi'6n'.: ·'.'$.yntneti¢: C;:1r:i(:iabino.ids a.s. a Caus.e of:Dsc;lth:.:·}r: .. ... · •.· :/. :-;. '.":.:': ·, .' :_ . . 

. . '' ; . ' . • . .. : . . . . .. ·' :· ' .; • . .' : • . :. . ' · = .... • .. 
.. · .. , .. : : 

•, ... ' . ·· ·, ·•·, 
.. :· .. . 



... • .. ,;, : : t ••• ·.:-, '•• 

. . ·. 
. ··. ' . ~. : :··:. ·, .· ·. · .. . : • ' -~ ·:: . ·. ··:· ;· .. . . 

··· .. .- :. ·)~·:-:-. . ~:: :, .... . : . •. ~·· 
. ... t:· .· ,i'.·:·_.·. ..· .. ·.:· :. ·~_.·. ::t ... • • : • • .• : . ·, • • 1·· : :: ~ • : ~. • • .- •' . 

' •• • ...... . ! .... ·. '. ' .... .. /.t~ .:· .. ,: ~-:: .. •·. :,, . 
• :.: (. • ., •· .;t . :·, - ~ \ . • . ·-i · •, . : . 

·• •. : :!:t~Fi~i~i;i~t~\;Jnte(en~eiith~}19riQaA~e~oi~tiW~;iMJd'.2~r~iiJin~is,Pajr · ..•. , . ·.· 
Pr~sentaffqri: 1'BespirtHqr8rairi :· -Trc;1sh-br Treasljr-~ .. . ?> •'.: __ ,: .:· · -.. · .. : . 

.. ·:, · ... 

·< ' g~i~ri~ci~~~~~~~~~~~fei~~c~ Qfthe,Flori~ai\$sf aN~-of M~d;9.,~~amiri~rS,_ ·• .. •' . 
, : .. : ... · · :·,·: P:re.sel)tatiori: ,il)n_e~pede_d Con,cus:iiv~ Tra_unia: . CTE ~i .9n Ap.lle 0,a!J.$Er.qf .Pe~Jh" :_- . , , 

.. ..• :.: . · .•.• : ' oR:~:NxREEtR~s.:: .· ·• .··.: .•.. <.· :~~B ~◊~R~~~J: '" ' ::;.:: . ' '. . .. . . ' : . •·-·: :: X •.• \:: :·•·· :' 

. . . · Hali~day, kK~;·Q~;ne ,:\ : .. , S~~-~;fi~.·: ~~t;,ij· a~/~-~~~¢r,". ·G_t '·.:;oid~r.i~~ re~~~~~j-~~, :_: :- ./·'•·: . 
·.: ... fo_liowing amphetamine.-induced dop.amine. depJE?tion., Pha.tmEJto/ogy ~nd Toxicology. ·2000; · :· .. · 

.· ·: .- 87(5):~11-217." , ·· .· ·.· · .· .... · _:. '••: _ . . :-::.·· .. ·_:.:.:: · . · ·,. . . · .. · 
··'·~·· . . · .. .. ,·. · .\ . . . ,•· .· .. . ·~ ··~·. . . ··. . . . ' . ', ···: . . . . . , \ . .:: ; .· .. .-_: . ; . . .... _ ·. ·. . :: 

· . . · ... Munot~Elias, G., MarcLJs, A,J.,, Coyne,"T.M.;.\/\/oodbury~_D:, al'itl . .Black;·I.B.A,dul.t bone :· : . · ., ._ ... .. 
. ·. . . .. · .. marrow stror.nal"<tefls in th¢ embryonic °l,;irai('l: _.ehgraftme-nt; _migration, an.d ~Hf.ferentiation: an·g ~> ··, -, ·. ;: · ·. 

· _- ;-.. _- long::ter_m survival. Journal of}Jeurns.cf$h:ce:" 20Q4;.24(19): 49~5--~·5·; ·· . ··.: . ,, :_-_. ·- · ·: . ~-"< · · ... ;'°,-: • 1• 

.. ·:. : __ Cby.pe.; +iM:::'·, Ma_;,cG~. A.J.:vv~od~-~-~.--. .-~:· ~~d :B·I:~~. 'r-.~:-; _~rr;~'.·str;~:·:~~;,~: \.;~~:~;,~;;;~·;_;>:,·: _: ::::(;:.'.: ·:·. ·/ • 
. · . . 

., : ·:: to ·the .c!dUJt :b·ra-in -are rejected PY an in'tlammatot/tesp.onie .aiJd.-trat:i.sfe.r:-defnor'.:!~b~[s (cl host':··_::.::· / ··\ :. · / : . . · · 
·_-·.:; ne.·µrqmL~hd gfia: $femCells.{2006,;°".24..(1 '.ll-2483-9·2· · ·/: ·\:· · .. :-.-:. :.: _;:: : _:: ._' ·_ -<:· ·.::: :-- :: '.:'. <:-:,/ · '· ·:_ . . :-... ,; ·: · .; · 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . '· .·. .. . . . . . . 

...... . ::-. Weod~ur.y ):i~: .K~ame/f3.c-., Reyno;~i .K:,. ~-~rcu§'._'.ix:J ..•. co;ne: -._: . · :: > _ .. . '.:. :, ;:·. . · · ·· · 
.. · .. :_.·, ··,· T.M.-,_ahct:Bl_ackLB . . Lon.Q~term:cryopreser._ved nLimal") amnicicytes retai"ri pro)iferatiy~ _· .< . . · · . ••· . 

· . .- .:. · , , : capaci~y·aoo differentiate. irito·~ci9der.mal ·and me"soderma!'derivativ,es in vitro. Motecv.tai :-· _'. : . · · · ' .. 
·... . · . . '.,: Repr,oduction and.- Oeve/opment: ·20Q6; 73(1.'.1 )/ J'463--:r2 . . · · . '.· · · .. <, ::·-.. ·. / .. ··: -:. ·;. · .-... · · ... · 

. ~~.- . _; .· ::· ... :·: ;:,:,i~//-·· >.··:.·/ .. ~:'.~··.:-:-,·.-.:.::'.:.;:; ,•, :~ .. -~-: :· ·~< -:· .... ·~~~·
1

·:·:•~v::/::;_:: .~: .. . , .... ;? .· .. .. ::· :·:·:· ., ·.: .::.. . . <~(.) .. .. . ,::.,· ... ·:·:r• .. .-:,;:··,:.~/~ . ... •·.-·.::: .~·: 
. .':\ :_ , ·; ·. C_o_ynEf, T)~'.):._ 1 Mar¢vs,: f.\:J .; R_eyr:i6!~Sj.J:<-,: e.,.?S~,; IJ~ ..... '{Y~i;il;ibu_ry, '.~ ,_L; : [)js_p.ara.te 11<:>~t->..-\ ? · : /.:/: / ,..... ·'; : .. , .· , < . :·:-, : ·_, tesr:rons_E:·.and ~bfi_o'r surviva1 ·aft~wt~~ Jra~.Sflarit~tjon~ofjnese['.~hX'.1)~f:9r_ 8-EfY_r<?i~~~A.d?,r~:~1::( \'-~- ·. . , . _ .. 

· . : . .. c:~l lstotheintactrad~nt:o.rain. Tral,1.:Splantat,on.2007~84(1_1): ·-15~7-.15~6;. :,• .. ·_._. '.":,. ';>·-.: ·-·.-.•.:-~: , •· • 
• ~ • • • • ., •.- '"', .-.••, •!, ,'- : ._ 1° • .. ';• : '\ :~.•.-.• • : I~• , : •, .••: ,•y.;; ...... :::•.;.•,\,~:, .. ,:~ •, ~•,:<•:> •:_.'•'":..1~.f:~•)••,f ,~, • -~• •; . •.:,~ •.,•,,• • • 

. ·wooqb_ury; Q, Leh)3..W., Reyn·o1ds K,.McAufitte:Vv,'.G.,",G;py_ne T:, Wu)<: . .. ... ·, 
· _, ·.Effii;:ient method .for ge'neratihg nuclear· fra.9.tlons.·fr~m rharrow. stromal . ·: ·. • .. : · :· ... 
· . . ·cells. · Cyt6t~chno/o_g_y,-_2oosr 5?(_2):77-_84: , ·. : ·. :. __ .. · . · . · · • .. • -~ · . . .... _ 

. , :·"·:; M;ri;0s;A;j_·, ◊~✓- ~e;· J:M,1 ~~wc~/ /i-\No6·~pa;~·::o\ i ,~cf(:-·.ihS: :1~~1~tib~·;::~h~,i~~teriz~;i'.0)< :_ ,·:. . . 
,. . :'.. and diffe•rentiation-.ofs(em cells deriv.i,lc;I" from iti:e r?t ·am~jqtjc-m¢m.br~n.Et :b;if~rentjatiori; .. ··:·', ":'. < :/ 

---;:_ .. •-i·~;:?9.~~; :6.(2)_}!,?·fr.4_:-i_: ·-.t_· __ ---:.,.J ~:--.: >-.; ---<?::: :\/::.\ .-\:;t--.. :_.; ·;,::":J(r;:;t)(:-,:>}f :~\·/_/:_·,·_ :<::_::_~:,?/ -
·:, :. ' Marcu_~-, "A.J,~ ·.Coyr1e/ J._ty1.,· Black',·_I.B.,•'f:Vo9.dbu_ry..; D; ·-F?le!:9f --~hirti9D"'<l$riyed _st~m·-9ells;-:: .. _ ,, _-:~. 

·: . .-· transplanted:to 1ne·fetal rat-brain-:·· migratip.r, ,·· sur.viVar .and-.diffe(~btiation .. Jo,imat of Celll!llar· :. --: ,., . ,. _;,., · 
· · :a~d-M0Tec"i1iarliedicibe :·2._06a --1'2{4) t- ··. ;'. .· ,: /·--.: .-., ·~: ·_::;:-: .. ; · .. 1-. ·:;<.-:-. -;",:,, _;:,:-;-:·: ·(:;· ... • 

.. · . ... .. ; : .f ~~o~;l';Mj)~~;, R: ;o ri,-~.;~}'.: ~ J;_~01e, ;IJ'. ~I~iiJ.Jj\~}:~f ;I }' '>}' •..•• , ,:, . •. ··• 
, • . · . . . .. · ; .. : . vc;1s.cwlop.c1thy- in a _lyrt1ph_om.a·pc;1t1ent .Pr~sur:r:ip,tlY.El: ev1d.~0c::~ of rv.,ycopl~?r:t1.a _pneuri;ioniae_ . · : · .. :· ... : , . _:,: 

· •·· ': , · ·: --':,: mic"r6va$C.Ul~J ~n·qot_hel_ipl :Cell.fnvasi6ri. i_n: ~ ,brc;1ib biopsy :,Jq'Jfry~I pfNei.J.roldgicf:J/$.tie_nce.s .. · ( . ; · ·. '. . . · ; · · 

·_._-,: .. ·· ,'. ~:./',2:~_1:l;_,~0~{_~-?)::°:1t~.~-:'::< .;•::· ?'.'.:·:::>_::/ •:.::: :.::>\ : /. :_;_ .. ·-:;·: .. ::·· i,:</:::: __ {-:\.,::;/·,:~;\ __ .':: .· ·; ·~:::.:::}::., : .. _ .. :. :'_'. ""·_, ·. 
·, · •. '. :Gfaser; .( ;$_nf Ci&yr:i~;--l\ M:':progri3s.s.iy.e rr,iJJJtltqc:~l; fo:LJko.~n.sepb~ioRalhy,inJH~Jetiing:6.F:?: . :c:, -.--<>f ·· • ',.._ . 

. . . • : j~m9n~ ::~:rr~ :;yn;i?t":: !_:t •~Pr:·:~:ir~;:i,~~tf '.tb~½'.(i1.}[~~itf \ .. ·. ··,:, :' .· .. 

.. : . . 

'· ,-. . :, ; ·. ;, ., . ·' 



Reviews. 2011 , 16(6): 256-259. 

Gilsenan, W .F., Habecker, P.L., Johnson, A.L., Coyne, T.M. Neu·rologic disease attributed 
to a pitui tary adenbma in an a,lpacc;i. Journal of Veterinary'fnternal Medicine. 2012; · 
26(4 ):1073-1077. . 

Moss, H.E., Mejico, L.J., de la Roza; G., Coyne, T.M., (;aletta, S.L., Liu, G.T. lgG4~rela_ted 
inflammatory psei.idotumor of the central nervous system responsive to mycophenolate 
mofetil. Journal of Neurological Sciences. 2012; 318 (1-2): 31-35 

Shih-Shan Lang, S. , Zager, ·E.L., Coyne, T.M., Nangunoori, R .. Kneeland , B. · 
Nathanson,K.L. Hybrid peripheral nerve sheath tumor. Journal of Neurological Sciences. 
2012. 11 7(5):897-901. . . 

Chen, H.I. , Lang, S-s·., Coyne, T.M:, Malhotra, N.R., Schust~r, J.M. lntr~meduUary spinal 
sarcoidosis masquerading as cervic~I stenosis. World Neurosurgery. 2013; _80(6): 375-380. 

Venneti, s, Madden• M.E. Coyne• T. Phillips• J.J., Gorovets· o.·, Huse, J.T., Kbfler, J. Lu, C. 
Tihan, T. Sullivan• L.M., Santi• M., Jud.kins, A.R., Perry, A., Thompson, C .B. Histone 3 lysine 
9 trimethylation (H3K9me3) is differentially associated with isocitrate dehydrogenase 1 
(IDH1) R132H mutations in oligodendrogliomas and high-grade astrocytomas. JNEN. 2013. 
72(4 ):298-306 

Algharras, A.A., Mamouricm, A., Coyne, T, Mohan, S. Leukosta$iS in an adult with AML 
pres.enting as multiple high attenuation brain masses oh CT. Journa:I of Clinical Diagnostic 
Research. 2013; 7(12): 3020-30.22. 

Coyne, T .M., Falzon, A. , DiCarlo, F'.J. Death resulting from cannabis.:induced psychotic. 
behavior. ASCP Case Reports: Forensic Pathology. 2013 · 

Carson, K.R., Newsome; S.D. , Kim, E.J., Wagner-Johnston, N.D., von Geldern,. _G., 
Moskowitz; C.H., Moskowitz, A. .J., Rook, A.H., Jalan, P ., Loren, A.W.'; Landsburg, D. , Coyne, 
T., Tsai, -0 ., · Raisch, D,W.;. Norris, L.B., Bookstaver, B., _Sartor, 0. and Bennet, C .L. 
Progressive multifocal leukoencephalopathy associated with brer\tuximal;l vedotin therapy: A 
report of 5 cases froll) the .Southern Network on Adverse Reactions {SONAR) pr.eject. 
Cancer. 2014. 20(16): 2464-2471. · · 

Davis, D.A., Mondo, K., Stern, E ... , Annor, A.f<., Murch, S .J,, Coyne, r :M .; Brand, L.E., Moore, 
M.J., Brad ley, W.G., Cox,. P . .A. Cyanobacterial Neurotoxin BMM and Srain Pathology 
in Stranded Dolphins. PloS One. 2019. 14(3): e0213346 

Davis, D.A ., Garamszeig, S.P., Banack, S.A., Dooley, P.E., Coyne, T. M,, Mclean, D'.W., 
Rotstein , D.S. , Mash, D.C., Cox, P.A. BMAA, Methylmercury,. and Mechariisrns of 
Neurodegenerat,oh in Dolphins: A Natural Model of Toxin Exposure. Toxins (Basel). 
2021. 13: 697-712. 

ABSTRACTS PRESENTED: 

Weig, B., Coyne, T.M., Reuhl, K.R. Neural stem cells and the xenobiotic response. (2001) 
Society of Toxicology, San Fransisco, CA. 

Coyne, T.M., Reynolds, K., Woodbury, D., Black, I.B. Clonal analysis of adult bone marrow 



. . : , . : ,' . - · . 

.. ,· . 

stromal cell~ an"d b.eMyio~ after tra~splantation into the. adult rat bra.in. (2002) So~iety for ··. 
Neuroscience, Orlando, Fla. · .·. . . ·. . · · · ·. · · • · · · .. 

' ... . . .· . . .· 

Kr~~~r •.. ~:c.· Mtir.c~s.i.'J'.,. C9yn~>t.M,, Reynolds·, K.; VVo~d~u~. D.,· siack, .. 1.B· .. -~ hu~~r1 
amriiocyt~ c~ll li_ne differentiate,s into'pu.tatiye neur-qri~ in vitro. (2003) Society for •. . . . 

~-e~'.r9-~~'.~?~t• ·\e; qr.le~~s, _U\. ·:.•:<. }: <::· .·.::,:~ _. . ::i \ .·\, : : ;·.·: .·=:~/· .. :. ·>: ·~ ,; ::: ;_ _.. . . :.•" .. 
Marcus: A:J:tCCiyne: .t.M., 'fVoodtn.rry·, ·D:, l~l89k,· 'LB· .. :loii9•term.SLirvJval, ·m(Qratjqr\:ar)d ·· ·. ~-=.-~:·. : 
neuronal ge·ne expression iri marrow strc:iinal cells .. tra.risplanted to the .embryor\ic.. . . 
rat. pra_iri. (40.03) Society for Neu·rosci~hce;·New Orl'eai 1s; LA. · ·. ·.. · · :,. ·•· · ,:: . . . . .. . . . . . . - . . ~ 

Coyne,· JJv1 .. ,Marcus, A.J., Woodbury; 0., Black,• LE:3.\:ong-term survival, migration and 
phenotypic ~xpression. of marrow stromal cells transplante·d into the adult rat brain. (2003) 
Society for Neuroscience, New OrieP:ns, LA. .: : · : . . .· _-. · · · · 

: . . . .. . . ·.· . . · ' · .. 

Krarher,.S:c-. Ma;~us:·tt~ .. ·c6yn~.- +.10., .Rey~oids., K:; WbodbG~, r{., .. Black, i:s./A h~~;~. :-· 
amniocyte ¢ell line- diffE;Jtentiate$ .into putati:ve. net;tra.n$ in vitiq:· (20b.4) NJCSt .$tern Cell .. : · : ·. ·.-
Sympqsi.0mO New B.r:un$wick,. NJ.::'. . · . . · . . : :.,:.· .•. : . . ; ... . ·:.:;> -:: .. 
:Mar~~~;.gi: ci:n~:i.1\~ .. . R.eyn~i~~ ... K:,\ ~.io:b~6~~:-b .:si~~{\:-s'.·. Ad·~;tbo~~\ ~ir·;~w· , :•·,·:'.'•:: · . . ... 
str.omal c.ells in 'the. emb.ryonic bri:liri: long-term six m'onth survival and subregi.on~specific· 
differ.~ntiatie.n .. (2004) N,JCST Stem :Cell Syrnposiu:m,:,\JewBrunswick, NJ. · . .-'. • . • · . . · 
. . ·. · . . . 

· Cdyhe: T.r .. 1(.;Mar.cwsiAJ .: Woq,db\,lfy,· O,,.· Black;.'i.B. h ~nspla~tatioh ·of mar-row .str:Omal • . 
. cefls. fo the adultbr,ain:· long-t~rm surviv.aJ: arid region-speeinc.gene ·expression: (.2004) · · 

. , ,< NJC.ST Ste1J1·Cell'$ymposium, New .!3rDn$w.lck, NJ. · ··. · · . · · · · · 

.· . .' : : Ma~cus·: A.'/ o;;n·e:. f:M-.,: W6od~;ury:. [}., :~;~6k.;Ji: Adult ~6n·~ rn~rr;yJ s(ro~ai'c~lls i.n ·:. 
the _embryonic·pr.ai'h: long:.form survivalf0r six mqtiths and suqregio.n·~specif1¢ di.fferenfia.tion•: 
(2004) So.ciety for t,Jeuro.scienc.e, S~n Pie.go·, CA.::,: ' .. >: · :' · .... : ... . : • ... . .·. ;.: .. ·. . 
Coyne., ~:M.: ~-arc~s. ~,Jq Wood bu~/;:,· a1~ck,·:;~~: ·T.ra.nsp:;ant:tion .of; mar.row ~t;.6rna.l . . •. : ··. 
cells. ·to the_ adult brain: long-term survival c)nd re9ion-specific. gene expression. (2004) 
Sopiety.Jor Neuroscience, San Diego, CA. - •. . .. ·. · . · . · · · . ..... · . : 

~ .. . 

'- · . ... 

: ·c6yri~: T·.M:;: M~~CUSi /tJ.:.yv.o~.db:liry, D.; .. Black,·.1.-S \ .-r.ran~pl~·n.tatlbh of .mar~ow\,-tr~r.n~1 ··.·. . .. 
. c.ells .. tq.the· adult brai,::i; 'Jong.-term survival and regioh7specific gene: expr.ess,ion:. (2004 ) . . ·: .· ·.: ... : 
lnterri.at!onal $09ietyfor Stem Cell R~search, Boston, ·MA. · · ·. · ·· · ·· · _.,_. 

•C~ine,,·T.~.,i ·~ar~~s·,·A~·J., w.~;~b~-tY: .6.;·slac~i,:s~ .L6ng'.-tjrm :~µ~iva1 '. ~ ·i~ra~.i~r/ an~t·'· ·: ..... 
phenotypic··expr~ssio~ of marrow.sfr9m~I cells tr;:\nsplante·~ tci lhe·_adult rat brain_.,(2004). · .·•· .. ·· 
.Societyfor'Toxi~ology; Baltimor~. MP.· . · .. · ... · · •. _ .. . · • . ..····· '/ . .. _ · · 

• •: • • l f - • • • '••• .-• 

• .- Ma;9~s. A..:i R.a\ich, J:;.·Coyne', T.M\\Aio._.odbury;' c( Bla~k; 1.s;: A.m:n ion-~erive:d st_e.~ c~'1·1s:.<: .;· 
: . (2005YNJGST- Stem·cell Sy'mpo'sium:.- New Srun~yvi6k;}'JJ> · . . · .' . . . . 

. . --·.-: .· : .Mat~u~.'Ai~:?R~~ch, ;::. Coy~~:: .r.·M: ,· ~~pdbv~: 6.,: 8 l13qk; :;·:s: AcllJ:•1t.b~~e· n,ar;~)str~ia; . 
. i:,ei1s: in: .the, ehi.t5iyonio b.ra.ih: ·1ong-terrn ·survi,Val. and_·su6regkin•spe9ific dit{ereritiation .. (~QQS) 
. lntern~tion.al $6.de:tY: fo.r Stern Cell Researc~ .• ·sari Fr~6ei.sco, 'CA; :•. .:· · ·. · : . · . · ·. . , 

·.coy~e. T.~{.,:~oO~bu.ry,:·.·b·:.· ~e~.-G:·w·.:··~~Y·d~ld~;::~·.·; B:lack,;::'.;~::: .w~O:.;Kt·Pr~i:6~;,c_ ·.:· .. :~:· 
char.acter.izc;1tion 9f. the •di.ffer.entiatioti ·of adult bone: marro.w-m.esenchyr,r\al·.stem cells into ··. 
presbmptivi· nei:Jr9ns. in-vitro. ···(200~.). $9cletyfor' N,euroscienc.~>Atiahtcf GA.. . . ,· . 

·· ~ ·. · : . . · ... ·.,:. . . . ·:- .... :_~ · · .. ... :: · ·. -._;._ .. ~··:·:·_.:.::: . . :· ·:· .. ··. •-' ·:·•· :~ ··. · :•t,:·· , 

. •' -~: .... 

' ·>::··":~/ :. 
.. · 

. . ... . 
• .. . , 



Marcus, A.J. Rauch, J ., Anton, K., Coyne, T.M., Woodbury, D., Black, I.S. Amn ion~derived 
stem cells. (2006) International Society for Stem Cell Research, Toronto, Canada. 

Coyne, T.M., Marcus, A.J., Woodbury, D., Black, 1.8. Marrow stromal cells transplanted to 
the adult brain are rejected by an innate immune response and transfer donor labels to host 
neurons and glia. (:?006) International Society for Stem Cell Research, Toronto, Canada. 

Coyne, T.M., Woodbury, D., Len, G.W., Reynolds, K., McAullife, G, Wu, K. Isolation and 
characterization of a nuclear fraction from adult rat bone marrow stromal cells. (2007) 
Society for Neuroscience, San Diego, CA. 

Venneti, S., Madden, M.F., Coyne, T., Phillips, J.J., Huse, T.J., Lu, C., Tihan, T., Sullivan, 
L.M., Santi, M., Judkins AR., Thompson, C.B., and Perry, A. Patterns of repressive Histone 
3K9 trimethylation ln isocitrate dehydrogenase mutant and wild type gliomas. (2012) 
American Association of Neuropathologists. Chicago IL. 

Venneti, S., Madden, M.E., Coyne, T.M., Phillips, J.J., Gorovets, D., Huse, J.T., Kofler, J., 
Lu, C.Tihan, T., Sullivan, L.M. Santi, M., Judkins, A.R., Thompson, C.B., Perry, A. Patterns 
of repressive histone 3 lysine 9 trimethylation (H3K9me3) in gliomas with and without 
isocitrate dehydrogenase 1 R132H mutation. (2012) Society for Neuro-Oncology, · 
Washington D.C. 



BACKGROUND MEMORANDUM 

DA TE: August 18, 2022 

TO: Major Bart Knowles 

FROM: Nicholas M. Vellis, 
Background Investigator, 
Criminal Investigations Division 

Coyne 1 

SUBJECT: Pre-Employment Background Investigation (Criminal and Driving History), 
Dr. Thomas Mazur Coyne, Medical Examiner applicant 

PERSONAL: 

licant Dr. Thomas Mazur Coyne resides at 
He can be reached by email at 

r coynet@ufl.edu. Dr. Coyne affiliates as an MD-Pathology
Medical Examiner UFID: 51656502. 

MOTOR VEHICLE OPERATION: 

Dr. Coyne has a valid Class E Florida driver's license, number 
restrictions. The license was issued on July 9. 2022. It expires on 

LEGAL: 

On August 9, 2022, criminal record inquiries were initiated with the Gainesville Police 
Department, the Alachua County Sheriffs Office, the Lee County She1iff's Office, the Charlotte 
County Sheriffs Office, the Miami-Dade Police Department, the Punta Gorda Police 
Department, the Toms River, NJ Police Department, the South Toms River Police Department, 
the Stafford Township Police Department, and the Ocean County New Jersey Prosecutor's 
Office. An additional inquiry was initiated with the Pinellas COlmty Clerk of Court and the 
Pinellas County Sheriffs Office to confirm or deny data obtained from the Comprehensive Case 
Information System inquiry. 

The Ft. Myers Police Department provided a summary of cases where the applicant was 
mentioned as the Medical Examiner in each case. There were no reports where the applicant was 
a suspect or victim. 



Coyne 2 

To date, responses have not been received from the Lee County Sheriffs Office and the Miami
Dade Police Department. Their replies will be added to the background file when received. 

The Comprehensive Case Information System inquiry on August 15, 2022, confirmed the traffic 
citation data listed above. An entry for a trespass arrest for a Thomas M Coyne was determined 
not to be the applicant when the arrestee's date of birth was found to be different from that of the 
applicant. 

An inquiry of the University of Florida Police Department Records Management system revealed 
the applicant has had no contact with the University of Florida Police Department. 



State of Florida 
Medical Examiners Commission 

P.O. Box 1489 I Tallahassee, FL32302-1489 I (850) 410-8600 

Hon. Brian S. Kramer, J.D. 
State Attorney 
8th Judicial Circuit of Florida 
120 West University Avenue 
Gainesville. FL 32601 

Dear Mr. Kramer: 

April 15, 2022 

I enjoyed talking with you on the phone last month and getting caught up now that you've moved from 
defense work to prosecution. 

As you know, William F. Hami lton, M.D. the District 8 Medical faaminer, plans to retire at the end 
of this year. Dr. Hamilton's position is a gubematorial appointment, in addition to being a full time faculty 
member of the Department of Pathology, Immunology and Laboratory Medicine at the University of Florida's 
College of Medicine. 

As we discussed on the telephone, the establishment of a District Medical Examiner Search Committee 
is defined by Florida Administrative Code, Chapter 11 G-5.004. Section 11 G-5.004(3)(b) provides for me, the 
Medical Examiners Commission Chairman. to appoint a chainnan of the District 8 Medical Examiner Search 
Committee. Thank you for agreeing to fill that important role. l will serve as the Medical Examiners 
Commission representative on this Search Committee. 

'Ille Medical Examiners Commission and the staff in Tallahassee stand ready to assist you in any way 
we can. Rule I l G-5 .004(3 ), Florida Administrative Code, delineates the process to be fol lowed in this matter. 
Additionally, there is a Search Committee Procedures Manual that is posted on the Medical Examiners 
Commission's website at http;;N.ww.fdk.stat~.J1µ~1~1EC1Publications-and-Fonns that establishes the 
necessary participatory membership of this Search Committee. 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me in my Winter Haven office (863-298-
4600) or Chad Lucas at the Medical Examiners Commission in Tallahassee at (850) 4 10-8609. Thank you for 
y r interest and efforts in this most important search. I look forward to working with you again. 

Stephen J. Nelson, M.A., M.D., F.C.A.P. 
Chainnan, Medical Examiners Commission 

SJN:bk 
cc: Jennifer Hunt, M.D., M.Ed. (sent via email only to: JenniferHunt@ufl.edu) 

Chair; Department of Pathology, Immunology and Laboratory Medicine 
University of Florida College of Medicine 

www.fdle.state.fl.us 



HEATHER L. JONES -.,,., ,.,.~ 120 WEST UNIVERSITY AVENUE 
CHIEF ASSISTANT STATE ATTORNEY GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA 32601 

BRIAN s. KRAMER TELEPHONE (352) 374 - 3670 

STATE ATTORNEY 
EIGHTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA 

SERVING 
ALACHUA, BAKER. BRADFORD, GILCHRIST, LEVY PLEASE REPL y TO: 

AND UNION COUNTIES 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

The District Eight Medical Examiner Search Committee will convene on 

May 23, 2022 beginning at 2:00 P.M. in the Multi-Purpose Room at the Eighth 

Judicial Circuit Office of the State Attorney, 120 West University Ave, Gainesville 

Florida, 32601. 



· -• Brian ·s. Kramer\ ~ta1e.Attqtney .. 
. Efghth Jucfici.al. Ciret.1if ·. . : . 
: ,0,ffiC~-onh.e·sta:t~ Atforr,ey. < .. 

120 Wesf.U.riiversity Ave··.· C:: ·: ;: . 
~ain¢,sviil~; rL 3.2601 . · - . . . . -: ·-

..\.::, .... :.:· :;_: .. . :· .. ; 
. ... :·· . . · ... :.::1(:: .. :: ... :·(:,;:~ :· 

. . ... .. · .. . 
' ,,,• . ~- ,:,· :·: •· . ~-

.Dear:Mr. Kra'me~; . . . . .-, · .'._: .. 

-. ~y-~i rn.e ;s i~o:~:s· rv.j :: C(?~n-~/ ~hci · [-·~ m t~~ 'c·w rrent' As·s_9iiaJ~ M etu~i(Eii3 ~ir{~no/wi-~HltEfcl 
. • tl)e District 8 Medical -Ex,;1miner and J;liriicaJ _Asso~ia-te professor. in ·th.e Depa,rtment of P~thology, · 
_·. tiT\n:iunology .?"ndJa.bora,l9ry Meoicin_e ${ the_ ynI~~r:Sltyiqf-.Fl.6.t.lQa.:. -. _ l_arn WriHng to,,_con\.'.,~Y. rnY)!it~re?!: ip . 
. Ihe:·posit_ior:i. of Ohi~f J,1~dical' Ex~mi_ner tor: t~e··-offloe :Of. . .th·fi O.lstrict 8·:Me_dfca_J '_E·xarj:ii:f1~(:~I.tt1 _ oy~r-::9 . 

ya·ars of exp,e.rierice ,in fd"renslc pathology working. in Philadelphi<J, •Miami, M.cl fort_. Myer$·, M~- 4_ y°E{ij{s : i .. 
·ot-experien9e ii:i office managerner{t-a.s>a Deputy Chie(l 6e.li.eye f am an·excel!erH ta,ndic;fq_iedorlt:'lis . · 
posjti.on, · _ . .. . ,· .. · :· · · · · .,·_ . · . _ .· . ·,_·_-: .. · ·. - '. _' _·_ .· .. · .. · ;·•· .. ·-' :. ;~· . 

. ·' ·I _graduated_-frdm ~utge·r_s· Uriiversity .¼'.ith_ a-Ba,che_lcir's.cif Ar.ts iri .f99_9,· l_'.went: cni fo :e~n:i'"m1 .Ph.D.·: iri . 
.• . Toxiq9[ogy: arid. -P,ha_r_rn_acologt fr.om. .Ru\gEfrs .· Llniv~rsity . 1.0: tOO.?. IYIY f6c(Js w~s-: in•)tJ°e~ ar~a--' .cit 
_. -~E:)urotoxicolt>gy _1N,1th_ extE;insivE:lr es.ear-qh jnvolV:in~_rhodels _o.f b~ain a_n~ spinal. cord ifij(J"ry, C.o_ricur:rent . . 

•· · with gra_9uate. train.ing :in:'Toxico!ogy, -l~lso co,:nple~ed.-a :medi~al degr~~ ·(1\1:p.) fr9m Rob_l?rt W69'd '_ ... . . - . 
'·. ··•Joh_~sotj. tyle.di9.~f.S6hool (Rµtg~rs U.ni,versityf ·-2009) .. Ait~r -~dlc~I ,sc,hoql: ( Qb.rppleti;id :a.r~si~if1~y-> ;--. . ' · · 
-.·. 'iri )\·~•~forric : Pi:ltf.i_olo~y-~· ~nd -f~·IJows_hip. in:_· N~~ropatr.ot6gf. at-Jh~;, Hd:srX!i1l. of lh,t :~,~:ri~r~l~( ,of. : _:•:i···· 
. <Pepris.y!varii.~ tUPE:NN}?.nd Chi.!d(en's _Ho,spjt~l .of:Phil~c:ie!phi.a {Cl-iQP·). 'L~_s!ly, I "fihjshed,.~J~U.Q.~"$.Q.iP, ·_ :- . · . . 
; lh f()r~n.§ic 'p~_thqiogy a((he Miarni-~a.c;te Medi~al-' Exa.min"ej.':(:OH_ice'. lri '2.014'.; F6H91«.i.6~:, tfiyJcir:e'i:~l-c . _.: __ • 
·p$thoJci.gy. fe.!lqwship, _ 1 ·\,vas : hired: as .a.n .Ass·oclate· 'Me<;lic~I . !=xsimii"\er -q.t: th_e Qistric:;t 2{ . ·r,;,r~9ica1 ·-· .· · .. 
Examir_l~r's:. Offlc;e iJ.l · f ·qrt- Myers.- On :J~ni:/ary 1., 2018; I :was p·romot~-d -. to . Oep!,!fy-'·Ctii~f 'Me'aic?I • .. 
_ExartiiHe('ln:additkm to.-my:m·edi~al. ex~:irniner duties; .1 sei:v.~ as-a ·cpi)5ult9.[1l ri,e1,JrQ1;i"ath9iOgist fbr mOltipie 
°F'lorida: blstr.i.ct tv\ecticai Ex~m-iner:OffiGes.. . . . . . . 

. . . . ' . ·· <.:,:, 

. ,• : ,Q;edh~,past,§. y~ah I h::~~-co~p.lia'ted·IJ'Je.li ovet-_.200.0 autopsi;5·'aiqd 750. bra1i·;·i~mi~~t1cir1~·;_ ~nd. i ii,a~e ·,,: ' 
. : testified· 8(\0 be.e,n· deposed" in nu..merous· c;;.as.es as an -expert in. forensic pa!ho[ogy, neuropathology, and· . 

toxicolpgy_. .- 'the,·~ : yea ts as _ o·eputy .. Chief . .Medi9al, ._Examir.ier :, ,pro.l,(iped· · inva_luable .. , exp~r;ie.nce .. in : _ ·: 
:management. serving· as·· the supervisor· of medicolegal'. de,ath- investigato'rs, . morgue ""teohnit;ians;· ,and 
. a.s.soci.ate rttifdiq~I. ex.a.ITiio.~:rs. -I ·,am: al.~Gf ·pn;:{w_d .:Qf "the·, excelien"Lworkin_g_ -relc1ti.onsQip 1-~staJ'.lli.~he¢{\ivith : , ': • . 
. v_ariov:S .'Sta(~_; :~Hq_rMY · off,ic_e$, }?W · -e.nJp_rce.me.ht '. ag~rfcfr~~; fjff_ ~.nd . r¢s:~.Ue/ ?riend.e.~, aod: regi6h~I · : •: .:: 
univer_:3.itia~d, -.lpcal 'hd&pftaJs. La~-tlY; ·-P~~li<r outreacfl;and. :ed~ca\jon·'are -P~Ssidrts. of i:r,ine:-.i rid [ M:av.e. . 

. p·rovided _nur.n.etous 'didactjc ses·sipris ro ·- loeaJ hospifais, · h0spibe-.agencieis; . law. enfo.rs:ement agencies.-

. · ;:;;:1:;~:~:::1::tt::1~:::~,:l ·~xomi~e( ;;II ~••• jo,nt~pp~h~•nt ·_.;iI i~e 0ni~e;s!Zo( •· 
::~ I0.rfdi :"Oe.p,?ftme.~Jof Path,o)pgy:( rrnm.yn(;))6Qf ~r:ld' ,L.9_b0raf_9;iY,·Me.d.icir'W..lndeed;~ I i/pf? rec.eJ;tly11ir.ed as . 

. -. JI-CltnlcaJ:A~,s.~~iat~.:p.rofes·lSQr.JtfJ_t,e,-O~part~e.[!,l of pc;1tl;lolQQY. , __ "7'hefe.Jri_._addifi9f'.I io .n'w me·drcaf~xamine.r . 
. . dutie.$, I will'psovide coverage· of b)Dth'h.osp(tal arl'o outre~ch.autops,ies,.a,nd h~lp mentor/instr.ucf P.a.thc,i[ogy . -.. 

. : ' ;· residents. A pron\otip/1_ le, Dlstricf Mei:lic~I (;ic~in:iner·.would r.epre-s~nt"an increciibre\>pportunity-1:0 cori.tinue· _. '..-. 
· :, bi-.td'giF1g_: thegap;·Q~f0,e:~ri )h8:)iiathplogl.-bip~rtrp§l_bf a1:1.q)lte.]'v1°e(fi9·~r ·;~x~n'llner.'9.f:f/ce: LEduy.?,t:tion, . · :_:: · 

. re.searc.hi aho·:puQll¢.atioli':hav.£/ i'l.iw.~y§'. b.een P~,S.$J~Fitfof :rnloe: _:· rnes_E;l p[f;3 :~oJJi~~oNnt/rti·ostJr:iport~nt. . . 
·.pµ}sµi_tsJri" the ¢.~F~_er_pt;~·,ph_y.sJ6ic\ri';;$_·c1~n.tfs.t. . It ,wpl.lld· be.an h~~~r-_io, c.bM1nt.ie:'ttt~s.(~~d_e'avq/~-th"r0u.gh . 

. ~h.e.jojnt app,ointrn.f:l,ri.l:Th~liK_ YO.U for, your tirn~ ari.d con~ioer~ti;::in iri-r~iJiewtrig my 13pplic~tiQh. \ 
. . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . : . 

.: .· 
.. ·• 

: . 
: . ·.· · .. ~. . · .. 
·. • .· .· .. :: .. . t. . . •. 

. · ... · .. ·,. 



Sinc~rely, 

Thomas M:· Co , M:D., Ph.b·: 
Associate Medical Examiner/Clinical Associate ·Professor 
District 8 Medical Examin_er Office 
Forensic Medicine Oivision · 
Department.of Pathology, Immunology arid Laboratory Meclidne· 
University of Florida College of Medicine . . o~- .... 
Cell : 
l;.ma1 : mn,ey.e:y 



10/18/22, 3:40 PM 

mnua Department of Health 
HEALTH 

THOMAS MAZUR COYNE 

License Number: ME115262 

Data As Of 10/18/2022 

Profession 
License 
License Status 
License Expiration Date 
License Original Issue Date 
Address of Record 

FL DOH MQA Search Portal I 

ControUed Substance Prescriber (for the Treatment of Chronic Non-malignant Pain) 

Discipline on File 
Public Complaint 

Medical Doctor 

ME115262 
CLEAR/ACTIVE 
1/31/2023 

02/25/2013 
3217 SW 47th Ave 

GAINESVILLE, FL 32608 
No 

No 
No 

The information on this page is a secure, primary source for license verification provided by the Florida Department 

of Health, Division of Medical Quality Assurance. This website is maintained by Division staff and is updated 

immediately upon a change to our licensing and enforcement database. 

https:/lmqa-internet.doh.state.fl.us/MQASearchServices/HealthCareProviders/LicenseVerificationPractitionerPrintFriendly?Liclnd=114079&Procde=1501 1/1 



ITT, . sr Ar~ oF Ft,;ORUlA 
DtrARTMEN'.f.-OF HEAL TH 

01\llSlON OF MEPICAL QJ.J.AL.HY ASSURANCE .. ... 
D.AtE'". .. .. . . 

LICENSE Nd, 
.. . 

11/04/2020 ME 115262 

THt MEDICAi,. OOQTOR 

NAMED 'BELOW HAS 'ME'f ALL REQUIREMENTS OF 

THE LAWS AND fWLes Ofl: THE STATE OF FLORIDA. 

f;xpiraJion O.pte: JANUARY 31, 2023 

Rbh De$antis 

GOVERNOR 

... 

DJBPLAY 'IF ROOUIR.EVBY LAW 

EXPIRATION DATE: JANUARY 31, 2023 

.. .. 
GONlRO~NO . 

710722 
" 

Stott A. R'ivke~s, MD 
Sta\e $.utg~on ten1;ral 

Your license number is ME 115262. Please use it in all correspondence with your board/council. Each licensee is solely responsible for notifying 

the Department in writing of the licensee's current mailing address and practice location address. If you have not received your renewal notice 90 
days prior to the expiration date shown on this license, please visit w-.w.r.FLHealthSource.gov and click "Renew A License" to renew online. 

The Medical Quality Assurance Online Services Portal gi-,es you the ability to manage your license to perform address updates, name changes, 
request duplicate licenses and much more. 

It's simple. Log onto your MQA Online Services account today at http://flhealthsource.gov/. Select the "Account Login" button to aocess your 

account. For changes to your name, address or to request duplicate licenses, choose your selection from the dropdown list under "Manage My 

License". Your profession wil l open for renewal 90 days prior to your expiration date. When the renewal cycle opens for your profession, the 
"Renew My License" header will automatically display on your license Dashbo@rd. 

ARE YOU RENEWAL READY? 

The Department of Health will now review 
your continuing education records at the 

time of license renewal. 

To learn more, please visit 
www.FLHealthSource.gov/A YRR 

IMPORTANT ANNOUNCEMENTS 
GROUNDS FOR DISCIPLINE 

You should be familiar with the Grounds for 
Discipline found in Section 456.072(1), 

Florida Statutes, and in the practice act for 
the profession in which you are licensed. 

Florida Statutes can be accessed at 
www.leg.slate.tl.us/Statutes 



Ap'ri 2a;:2p2~ 

.b(Bruc:e torc!berger 
Chie.t-; Diyisi0.n :ot Fo(ensic Medicine 
Uni\ieriity .o(Fldri:d~; - · · · 

.· ' ' . . . . 

. Dear br. (;oldbf~(gef: 

:p,:py_,tmenl ot P.l~artn<?'-\'ll~gy ;& T 0x\col0,.'j;: 
E!'.nC!~t t"k1(i:O :Sd1ooi ·<if Pl-.ari:nacy . 
Ri1t1;Jef.!i~; :rt·,es't~'rtc'lini~r~ity c.r· iJ;~~rJ<?.rsey 
170 fr.clinrit:.iiy.seii Roii<i/$usf.h Ga1ifotis. 
Pi'~ta(Mit1y. N1,0$f.l'.i4· 8020' 
Je!: B.~\~: -i:1s-02,lO · F.i'>'; i 3-2-44S~ffi 1.9 

. I take·tt1e gr-e:atest-p.feasure W.ritin·g ih support. 'of-Di'. Thomas :Coye, who is under co~~ider-atio,i 
for"the.:p.ositlqn ·o(Cl)i_e.{ Me·dical Examiner of ihe Pistri¢t. .8 Medical° E}mminer's-:Offi,ce: .. T.om is an 
.exfia,bf<;l(iiarily~q.li?.liffe~ tan(lidate and an exc·eptior-1al forensic pathologist.: He-ha·s}ny\,ery . 
highe~t r.~comrneno·atjcn. . . . . 

• By ii~){~f:b.r[~ff:ihtt<igucti6n_:,: ! .c\r0 Profess9r· of Pharmac~iogy-~ Toxi_col; :gy :ind~ di'i~ctof. ,di)fu~ . 
_m,dJecyk~r. p(;ltt\piogy faboratory _at Rµtgers L,Jnfversity. l have: known .Tom .for more. th~n 2'.(t:··: '_:-
y~ats. twas :director -of the Rutgers,7.Joir.it Graduate. Prqgra,n· ln Toxicology (J.9PT) w.heri '!je\'.i~§ 
a· PhDi stu:df3n{i,:'I_' t~e P~og,rain an~,setved on his d'o_cforal· research comn,_ittee; ! wor~~d-9(o~e.i,y 
with.~im <?ri $:e.vir.al ofJ1is .r~~earch projects ano ha_v_e gained an appreci.atioh ·ofhiifmany · ... 
talerits a~ ?.physi_ciim.and sc.ienfist ·· · · 

. I first rn.elTo:rr.i \yht:tn h~ was_ an· un.oe_rgr,acfqatlin the, Rutgers 'Department cif Psychology. His, 
the.n m.enJor.-.-:ft-1.~',lqte· DJ. Tho,masW~lsh, a·lert~d'·rne· th~tfie'hc!d·.thjs :arna~ing young st\.)denl 
and that 1 should recruit hiiri:ihto:the JGPT2 I ·merwlth'·Tom an<l was immediately impressed by 
··his iote.llige.ncei W0'r.k, efh.ic and·.mo4esty. H~ rriatrlcu/ated .. i@:to: the,Toxi6ology Program. and:· . 
imn,_id1~Wly~~~Hhe.,s{ar,id~r,~ :~Y: 0.b1dhsiudents,:wer~:·rn~a.sµred::Hr~ perforinanc~ ii.as, . . 
ouisfanding: he showed p.adicular dominance in two cr.ftic.al areas-: Qi9ch~r:t1ical toxicology and 
pat~o_fogy\ ·He;~~-s ~-:~n1.)denf in my Toxicol<Jg_ic.al,Pathology qours~i\;i slide.:bas.ed, dia·gnosti'c 
requk e_ment-_of;'tfie,- JGPT, aflo. he was tf:le be~t s.tudentJ.'Ye tiad in 30+·years. of tea_ching: 

_As T-orn,·c!)f!J.l.Pl~:t~<;!;t)J~-.4~y~~~-<3.fthe~is,_i.y_9~, ~~· !?,at.rye-Jp-to.e,a~EWtion.·ofth,~ taJ~ Dr. lri;rB!ac~. 
a wo(ld-r'ec:q~rilze~t p_fiy~ioian-.ne.urpsci~ritj_~t W.ith:.Qr., ~lac_k}~·str9n;g- f.lfl~.9.1;1rag.emen.t, to_m 
applied to rnedicalschool-.. and, wa:s frnmediately-accepted.fo:·the .Robe.rt Wocd"Johnson Medi'cal 
School: ·11 e:~begar,i: his .j:hedica I ieou tseworldwh i"te: tom P. tetlr:i!fl:i isJ?..hD · s tuoies;' wh lch focused On 
iJ~4tqijai:it~in\p,;)(:~h~·neJib11ii.:tiahsp,:1~Af?.tl98:~, .P;(io,jj:g~iiRn.~Jr0(.h·•.h1s·.:dd~tori31j.triesis,:wor.kat.~ 

.stilJ ~igh_ly qi,tec;f Jn:·th~ 'lite.ratut$.., His pe11Qf1'1Jp1Jce-Jn m,e.dicg.l:~~~.h.QG.l was,:s1n:rilarly:stellar ar.id he 



;• .'·: •• i • 

. . 
(:-:-=: .. '•:': .. '::~.: ·;j ~; \. 

: . , .: . 
, • . · . . . . ~ ·: ;: .. :\( '. . : . 

~GE;Rf . •• . ,. ·.· ,: 
. · .... ::·• .r ~.~ ... i\:; · .. > .. , j 

. . : 5: · ! ... : .. ;: :> . ... . . ·. ,•· . . . . . ... . . . 
. : .. " ..... ~. ~' ... . ' 

,. ·,.,,.·: 
. . :: :, ; . ~ ~: ~ :· .. . : .· .· :· · .. 

'... , • . : . . . 

:; , .,,•.~• '.;_.t ·:. .. ··.· . . .. . : : · ·.·-•./·.(: , /; .,;;· . :··t.:)>)-_ .,: :·: .· :·• >t>) ;'.-: ·>•:,:; . 
:graduated .AOA1n 2009-. He.ieceiv~d traini,ng .in.A 6ato,mic Pathology from:fh~ Un{v~rsity of 
.Pennsylvania ai:ld· the Rope(i-Wooq)ohnson M.edical School,. Neuropathoiogy from the· . . 
l;!b.iYersity_9f_ .r?,.en,:1syJvan:ia, .and For~ns(c F'qth9.lcfgy. _dµrihg:~ f¢il~.i:yship ~t.tl-i\3'. Mia{lli b~·de ... 
. Medical ·Examiner Qepartment. ·Tom i.s · Board CertiJied in· AP, Ne,LJropa~hoJogy and F orens.ic. 
Pathology-:-ei<G_eptiorial. cragentiais. for hi$. prop9s~d po~,iti9n, .·· . ' 

. : ~.(/·.'.::·~:<- ·/.\.'.·.·~ .. ,:..(. _::. ··.· .... · .. <·. ,: •:·.·.~·. ~, :~-:~··~<·•:·>':.:.· :•.:<·· .. ··_:: ; . · .. _ .. -.:, · .. : .. .. ·· ... . ··.· .. 
. 1 Will nqt·fo.lterafe .his:~iubsequeht. career iri'Florida;. other than to state that he is Q highly·: 
resp~Gt~ct for~ri~ic pathologis:t and co'r)$uJtant n.eur:opatholo9ist. He has. a strong aqademit bent 

. Qnd has perfor[fled superb se'rvioe fer the .Univ:er.S.ity ·o(Miarni 6rajr1 _Enqowmerit sa·nk and on .the 
!;,ditorial· 6oar.d Mem·ber for the ~oµrnal d Forensic·Soiences. He is a superb speaker ·and 
ad~OC.c\te·f9rfq r.ensie:H3cje_nce.$·. · .. : . • . ... , •.: · · · . ,·. " · · ,. · .. · .. ··.·. · _: .... 

- ~·· · .. : ... · .. · .: . . •· , ··: .. ·. ·: . . · ,,. ... ·. ::·: · ... :·· ·:.·' , ' •\,_ , .. _·. ~ . . . :~ .. ~·- "' .. ~~::'", : .· . . .. ·. 

'in summary, _r~m_.1s an ~xcep.ti6n,a!-' indiyit;lu9-I: hi~_hly_.trair:,~d;' e~cepti;~a1:1·i smart, -harcj--working 
a_nd _!1is integrity: is unir:ipea_ch.abl~, ,.He had.~ ·or.(~~r\~·e. o.f humor and ret;:!ins. the modestx anq · . 
-humility that l first SQW in him mor,e than two dec.ades ag0. · He inspires trust and radiate~ , : 
:cqiyipetency. l recomr:qeno ·hihl ·to yoµ enth·u..siasflcally and with.my. highe~t level of:~u-pp,ort•,:·>. · .. -: 

If ther~.is.:a~/~~oitio~ai i~~or~~tipri:I :c:art:.·~'r6;i~{ 6~·e;~~::~~:~·or~e~lt;t~,:·t~·-:c6rifact:~~:: ..... , . . . . . . . . . .. . .. 

Siri c.i(e)yypvfsj:, 
. ··: ,"' ,. . 

...... : ~· ·. :; .: . 

•: • ·. •. =. ~. . . • • 

. . ·, ..... , .. · . 
•• ! · • • 

... . "• ' 

.. 
K~·n,neth .R .. ,Reµhl, ·P}J,D,, DA.BT· :· :: ·; > ,.: 
Profes~or_:of Pharmacology & T O).<i.coiogy.': . 
Directo'.;,M?l_ec.ular 'P.athology F$cilit{.Cor~ 

. : ,. : . . ·." .. :, ,. 

-: . , ' .:: 
• -·· · ••• ,t 

.. -~.' ~ ,\:: .... · ... .. : · . . . : 
.,• : : 

•' . .· .· . ..,· ..... . 
.. :)•:.;:<;: ·'\: .•. ,:·. ~:: . 

.-

,.' ::;,:: 
· . · · ·,;_:· 
. ... · . 

.. . ~- . 
:- : , .. ··: .. 

· .. .- :r: 
,. -.: . . 

... ,· 
. : ... ~ 

.. 

\ .. , 

• •, .:•.I 
..... ~· .. :·--:.-.-::.:. - . ~: .:. :,~ ',.:. . . . . . 

·: .. ":': ·. . . . · .. • ., . 

.. : . 
~ .. : . . ' · . .. 
' . .. ·.· : 

·:"• 



OFFICE OF THE STATE ATTORNEY . 

·. Charl?ite·Ccmnly 
350 E . .Mitrion Avc'11ue 
PmiHI Gorda, FL 339.50 ·. 

(941) <i37.~2J 04 

.C.ollier County 
3315 E. Tnmiall)i Trnil, Si,ito 602 

Naples, FL 341 12 
(239) 25H470 :. 

TWENTIE'l'HJlJ'plCIAL C~RCVIT. 

· AMIRA D. FOX. 
STATE ATTORNEY 

,Glades Count}' 
500Avenue J SW., 

Mqore. Hnve~, FL 334'7'! 
(863) 9116-0077 Pro11d/y: Sci:v.ing (Ile Citizens tifSouthwest Florlrla 

April 26, 2~2~ 

Bnice A GoldbQrgei', Ph.D. 
Chier,. Foiensic Medicfo~·Division 
UF Health Pathofogy Laboratories 
4800 SW 35di DJ:ivo. 
Gainesville, FL 32608 

Dear J)r. Goldbe~·g~r, 

·Hendry Co1111ty 
i 04s'.:Prat1 i3011lev.nrd 
Ln8ellc, EL 33935 
'<s63)M2-4920: 

··-··":';""-
l,ce Cou1)l)' · 

2000 ~fain SIi-eei', 6th f.'loor 
.f:Orl Myers, FL J.390 I 
. ·:.(239) 533.:rnoo 

· M6iiti1g Adgress 
. . . P,OJ3ox399 

l~ori.' Myei·s, FL 33902 , 

l'.am pleased to·wdhHhis)etter ilfiitipport ofD~·. ·Thomas Coyne to become you!' Chi'efMedical Examiner in 
District Eight; fo my :role as.State Attorney, l have had the privilege ofwm:king with.Dr .. .C~yne on high·p~ofile 
cases on several occa·sfons and have been tremendously impl'essed with his intelligence a:nd skill. I havelieen 
working in oriminflljustice for over 30 years and lean h·uly say Dr. Coy11e is among the best in his field. · 

Dr. Coyne is always exh·emely professional and .knowledgeable and can succe,~!lf\.ltly impn1t his kno,vledge to 
attorneys an.d jurors. Thus, he is a favorite of our homicide Assistant State Attorneys. He•is always willing to go 
above and beyond fu providh1g· assistance, paHe.utly explaining scientific and medical tert:ns and .concepts that 
crui be very diffi.cuit 16 gr!isp::.Bts expertise· o . .n..br,aiu qar_nag~ illid bi.:nin ihjury·is invaluable and has Jl·eqmmtly 
helped 1is· obta~:s~1cce~S.ful.ciutc:o~es.. . .. . . .. . . . 

I was .extremely sorry:fo seQ'Di:. Coyne :1eave. Soutl~wes_bF.for~¥, .. but f a,t~ 5ie'liglito~.to 'se¢}le 'Y!'Hl:hol)efuµy ~till 
be assisting others hr'.(flodda. He is trnly exceptiomi\,.and 1 recommend him with<:mt ros.9Nation. 

Please let me know·tn <::an be of anyfruth.eras-sistat1qe it~ your vetting process. 

(jZ}½1;x :, . ,.y··, 
Ainfra D.-Fox·· . 
Stato ~'\li:01-nii - . . 

ADF/cai 

cc: Brian Kramer, S.1ate Attor11ey 
Office of the State Attorney~ Bighth Judicia.1 Circuit 

Ricardo Camacho, Operat~oos Director 
Office of the Medical Exrupiner Dlsil'iot;!!.igbt 

Pf.ense :yisi.t qur ivebsite www.scia2Q;org 



To whom it may concern, 

It is my pleasure to recommend Thomas Coyne for the position of thief Medical Examiner at District:·8· 
Medical Examiner's Office. I have known Torn for two and a ~alf years, and we worked together for the 
majority of that time at the District 21 Medical l:xaminer's Office. Not only was he an excellent mentor, 
but he also became a close personal friend. His vast knowledge in not just forensics, but neuropatholo~y 
and toxicology as well, will make him an invaluable addition to your team. 

In addition to his professional qualifications, Tom has personal qualities that make him well-suited to 
leadership. During our time working together he assumed the role of "point perso'n" that' many ·of us 
wot:Jld go to with-questions: More often than not he could give you the answer or know the proper course 
of action to take off the top of his head, which is why we would sometimes jokingly refer to him as a 
w.alkin·g encyclopedia. And he was never afraid to a9mit _it when he did not know the answe_r. He would 
even go the .extra mile and.take the time to resecirch it with you _in order to find the answer and learn 
together. He's committed to quality, growth, and progress, and he inspires other team tnembers to strive 
for the same. 

Tom is well qualified for this opportunity because he is a confident and fair leader. He was always 
compassionate and generous towards hi.s coworkers. There were many instances in which one of the 
other doctors, myself inclu.ded, was overwhelmed with cases and he never hesitated to come back and 
help out without expecting anything in return. 

Tom is easily approachable and a pleasure to work with. He was always cracking jokes and doing silly 
things that made everyone laugh and helped lighten everyone's day. He is fun, easy to get along with, and 
eager to help. His personality is just an added bonus to his many other qualifications. 

Tom has my highest recommendation for the position of Chief Medical Examir:ier with District. 8. Pl_ease 
feel free to conta.ct me for any further information. Thank you very much for your time. 

Sincerely, 

z, M.D. 



Bn1ce·Goidberget1;:P.h:JJ.: 
·Golbeba@patholo11tuli.ridli· 
Rica1:i:19 Cania¢hq:... Dtstri'd 8. Me,lical E:xa,m~ne::r1s,Offli::e Qperatii;>ns,'.Manager 
Ricardocnmocliofci>ufl.edu · 

. . .Lfii'sf .m,e(-Pt_; .. G.~iyi'r~ ;p·y a11~'}l:u:oygli ih.e. ~;~t9: /\Jfqfp~)i'.'$:,gfflc.i; JU).1~, {~)GY:<tars., ago.1~o'.gat,e, ·h~, 
has b~n .. and tem~fil'.i · an, : i,i.wafoabl(} consµlt· -fo: path'ccifogyi = fore,1?.sic::. path61og.y; , t\eµropathology

1
. 

toxicology an.d:a·frie1td,.n sadde.os. me to .write tliis, as·o·(IJ Jo'ss is'yolir gain. As ~u..cli, l_q:n recorp.m~nd,, 
without e~uivocatio,n, (hat Toµ1_is an-{deai. .candi~.ate .for position.as a ch1efm'ed1c,;1 . exa.mi~er nnd. :head 
of the division of .forensic.1Uedi9i.t1,C. T am .:c0.11fidynt .that witb his intel.ligence1 character, iJ\6t.iv1\lion., 
pat_ieJ.Jce, ar9 Qlli:~L~.l}tir.1:g'4~~ip;·to.0p,e.rfo,rn;t, a"v'11if m~<l.Jci'll. exari;tiJ1e:C·position is the -oe.:l.( t l9gical. step. · 

'TomJ1as.ali.i.irh~Ni:i.t.ctesir~·.fo ·betheo'be.stperson.j)e cart be;in.anyt-hlp,gbe.putsJtis J,TI.ind to .. As a 
. m~di:q,al eX;a.miue.r/Vfo.tind iha(b:e iYOSifesses, a· i1~)'dad. otfrdlt$~.'skll(s;:ancf ~blliti es:•rhat c1o:v,etai:l -we1J,:w.Hh• 
a 'Ghiefrbe,dical',ex~riiioef ~iicf'llea4 :of. tli~·,divis,iQff ohJ'~r.eJisi~;tile,tfio.ii,.e::p0#f10:n,'These foclude:,.i) To 

. analyzet·e\i:al:uate; -~fodfhahll :interpret various..'·slftiatfoirs; :2) T.o,Otgaiiizel:..synthesize.1 coi'ieepttial1ie~)liid 
co0iiih1ate ·de.tajl~t}) ~o· Mfi~e;,y,oi:in~_el', . ah'.g)~f.PWiti; ,4j' 'fqrfe~~ii¢li 11iid(.c9es{tf.ti :$~ :J\f ,_plaµ;,}1~d. 
clevelopso:und str.ategy·th"at·comports wjth'm,qdi'ca:Lcertainti:es;,6)To irtst1uct.;•a1id 7') an:uucomproniisirtg 
st~.nd~ei:i of pei:s{:>11:a\ :and:pr~fesskniat .etb.i~S: Furthenj10re; ·oasecl· upon.my ·repeated COl'ltact:s with Tom 
an.cl; the ma11y h9roi~lcfo -ea~es we have.·consulted ove:dhe::ycars, I can .say that many people fron:i· the 
State Attor.nex's :o ffic;e1,de{~h.se c~unsel,. a.t1d ~aw enfoi:cen1eflr.communi.ti:es have the utmqst respect for 
'.(om ,.apilbis· W.QJ'.~. · 

.. ·1:~mi-1-~':.'c!P.tfitY.:)<((~WV:S his. tafents:{0war.d~ sq:melhiug '.,h~·tniiy has ~-p~stqn;f9r anq;be;l'ie.ye,s· in: 
·has . alw.a_ys .:br.oti~t'-f di;thA'bt·.eriei~;;:_,kn<\i)\i!~P,ge:,;'~~P.A e,<,Jfrinii!ipen,t; ~fi~t:ar.r:~J1a,_1;1.ttyJ~rjstic#)y PQ}ll,~ll(}l;l: i~:. 
~ilY t~s)<: T 91n.;epf):fr,qzi_t?.t t.J,uqrre$tiQ,1:lably, T-Qm. '}'-9:U.td ,b.m:n:g: ~ht~ '.~a.i?,le::dediyatiop. :and. personal.;stan<,l_ql'd 
to-DJs.frJ.ct.- .8:inedicafexaniiilei-1 S·.offic.e:• . . . 

Pt¢Ase•feel'-fr.e•e·t6. .. tcmtact•1n:eifyou iiave afi:.y. qtiestfons: ln the' in:te·rh.n, T.reniain 

Sfoce:re'ly, 

. .Wri.dr,iasiHi J°Jar.dTner,, . - . .. . .. . '\ · .. . 

. A/~i~t~.nt:S}~Ya::~~~◊-rn~f:C~v.~n:tl'.e_tµ;JWg;i9i~,-,qi:Wtf it: .fi98¥:~i4~'J?ivis/ot\ 
· 21:)(}Q. Main Street · 

Fq.rtiM)ieri,.Floi'i'd~· ;3:3 901 
. . Tel.: 239-533-1'3J0 



d tt nlun ijJ)tl . ~ ~ dd ~ ij 

{1[4nmas ~ •.. Qin~nt, fl{.~. 
~~ ~ ~ ~ o/~~ cud~~ cud 

£a~~ h de~ ci/de !J8~ o/~
. ~, ~~~~o/J~, PC/S, 

13-564 

~lf e J\mer~nn _,ri~h ~of Jntlynlnffi! 
~~~~~~~~ 

hka9'~cud~~ 

Jat~olngg - J\nntomk 
~ europn±qolog~ 

{l_ .,,&,-,,. ?'Ir~ /\.. .. ..i? . - ~ );'/~ 
~ ;llitt Jrttibud ~~ fflrta111rtt 

J;U cfa-- ~~ .() ~"41 ~ JtUf 3/5 
~~ ~ ~v.--/4. - ~ 7< -~ Y~ 

Certificate Valid Through 12/31 /2023 



~nttf'ican 1!\oar-h nf Jl nt1 
gb.t ,,. g,._ed ~ a .. ~ ln In,~ 

W:itomas ~m~ur 41ottne 
-'{tfi' 

,~AJ ;tu/t.l~N'd ,,,,, HC<.."f't'<.-/ lV'<~l't/r- 7f--Nr,~✓4k J&l',tjl-nd e-&H.«u/ IP('>'d find! 
,/n,t ~IN.nMl~~y/;t?V,>,,/4:tin<;p- t:_,. l'k Ja~¥c/«,,,- ~de .fid~ ~~6-. . 

. '/l,.I',; Jtt ,,p liM llr,,/ ,A~r r/: /i/,•H(trr~ ~"/}//). 

'fill1c ~tntrican ~llllrb of Jlut~o.losu 
1'"""'"'6 /;k;,. «JCl~R:~ ,,,u/ dfc/4-NJ d~ u.6,,.~ ,A',~«~n,111,, 

/b. /4 ,r, !fJ,,.~4/j, 1htd, C~JCtrjf ~ eiit, 

Cert,lh~Jfl Vaid lt,rough 121311202.-



~acqtlnr of J\ris 
:BJitlt ~onors 

fniilI all iltt riglyts, respmtsibilitres, priltileges, mm imntutti±wt appethriuing tlytmmin. 

<irmd:eo unher tlte 5tal of tltt uniilers~ on iltt 
nindeentli b~ of~~, rmreteen lpm~eh mro nine~-nnre. 

~ ~ 
~tlllt 



mw ilfe 

l~.r~•~•--~ 
@.u rtnnmnmbmhnt nf iqt fucu:lfus of fife 

~raouah jr4ool-~tfn ~ruusfnitk 
mtb 

,~~~Jl-~raouau jc400I of ~ionreoital jcientts 
~!yt ~llarb nf <inbtttun:s of ~n, ~Ire jbrh ~!U~ of ~tfu IDernu, mw tip~ !Aomh 
nf ijtm_shts of fqt ~UV of ~emrim mtb !Jttdmhg of ~tfu 3]trftt? jirintlg ronftr uplllt 

~qoma5 ~a;;ur fil~m 
t.lrt btgttt of 

~ot±or of Jqilnsnplf\! 
fnitli ml tftt ri:g{rts, re~ihilitres, pribiltBes, mtb imntunitres ~ ilJttmrdn. 

<irmdtb mwtr tftt mdi of hoiq tntfutrsifus on iqe 

first on-g nf ®dnher, tfun iqmulmto ano six. 

~t(. t.. Mc.en~ 
IJre.sihtrrl 
~ 

frt&ihrrd 

fo·1~ 



i!{obert l!llno~ Jul1naon fflebical ~cqool 
~t it luwfurt tlpti upott tlre re.con11netthatiou uf t~e }~i.irult!! au~ lit! t~e aut~urit~ uf il1e 

~ttnrb of W'rustees, t4r ~-tuiuersi~ of ~rbitittr nub JD rntistrt! 
of ~ eftt J}ers~~ qrre&u roufers upon 

<.Uqomas !la3ur Qroyne 
Hye .cregrcc uf 

iloctnr nf :1Jttleh icint 

ftritly aII t~e rigqts ano priui!egts tqereto. . 
~n fuittttss fuqereof fue lp1ite ~.er~uttto affixeo our signatures anh- tqc seal of tlte ~niuersit~ 

in fqe jtate of ~efu ]erse!_! tqis tfttentfatft o~u of ~a~, 2009. 



Attachment "A" 
MEDICAL EXAM!l'\""ER District 8 Budget 

Effective October 1, 2022 - September 30, 2023 

Ooeratina Cost Fixed Exoenses FY 22-23 
Salaries and Benefits 
Salary offset1 (Pro Fees reimbursed to UF for Salaries) 
Contractual Services Facilities (Records storage, Biohazard) 
Repairs and Maintenance (Equipment, vehicles) 
Data Processing (Internet and back up) 
Operating Supplies (Autopsy and Office) 
Rent 
Printing & Reproduction 
Insurance, Liability and Auto 
Telephone, Postage, & Freight 
Travel/Meetings (Work Related/CME/CEU Requirements) 
Dues, Subscriptions, Library 
Miscellaneous (Utilities, Fuel) 
Administration Fee2 

Capital Expenses 
Net Ooeratino Cost Expense 

Entity 12ox:t:;ar I % of Caseload I Annual 
Assessment 

Alachua 536 62.8% $ 730,740.84 

Baker 35 4.1% $ 47,707.56 
Bradford 25 2.9% $ 33,744.36 
Dixie 40 4.7% $ 54,689.16 
Gilchrist 29 3.4% $ 39,562.44 
Levy 84 9.8% $ 114,032.76 
Union 14 1.6% $ 18,617.64 
Dept of Corrections~ 91 10.7% $ 124,505.16 

Total I 854 I 100.00%1 $ 1 163 599.92 
Rounding Adjustment $ 0.08 

Ooeratino Cost Total Validation Check $ 1 163 600.00 
!Non-Corrections case average per month: 
Avg. Operatino Cost Per Case: 

DOC ALL 85 100.00% $ 124,505.16 

Total I 85 I 100.00%1 $ 124,505.16 
Rounding Adjustment $ . 

DOC Assessment Total Validation Check $ 124,505.16 I Corrections case average per month: 
Avg. Operatinq Cost Per Case: 

Expense Total Budget Estimator 

District 8 Operating Cost Assessment Total 
Professional Services Cases Estimate 
(Variable per case) Fee 4 

Total 
Autopsy $ 800 613 $ 490.400 
External Examination $ 250 226 $ 56,500 
lnvestigativ~ ('.nly Report $ 175 15 $ 2,625 
Investigation (All Cases) $ 175 854 $ 149,450 

$ . 
Toxicology - routine $ 190 835 $ 158,650 
Histology - routine $ 175 835 $ 146,125 
Cremation Approval $ 30 3,573 $ 107,190 

Total Budget 
Typical Total Cost per case 

Note 
1 Offset by UF for staff pathologists 

Total 
$ 734,100 
$ (182,000) 
$ 35,000 
$ 10,000 
$ 15,000 
$ 75,000 
$ 312,000 
$ 3,000 
$ 9,500 
$ 4,000 
$ 12,500 
$ 1,000 
$ 42,000 
$ 92,500 
$ . 
$ 1,163 600 

Monthly 
Assessment 

$ 60,895.07 
$ 3,975.63 
$ 2,812.03 
$ 4,557.43 
$ 3,296.87 
$ 9,502.73 
$ 1,551.47 
$ 10,375.43 

$ 96,966.66 

$ 96 966.67 
64 

$ 1,361.85 
$ 10,375.43 

$ 10 375.43 

7 
$ 1,464.77 

FY 21-22 

$ 1,163,600 

$ 1,110,940 
To UF for Ors 
To UF for Ors 
To UF for Ors 
To UF for Ors 
To UF for On-Call 
To UF/DRL 
To UF/DRL 
To UF for Processing 
$ 2,274,540 
$ 2,663 

Not• 2 Administration Fee of 5% includes Human Resources, Purchasing and Financial Services 
Noie 3 DOC operating expense portion included in fixed fee per case contract 
Note 

4 Professional fees are itemized in Attachment "C" 

Latest Update 5/3/2022 



ATTACHMENT "B" 
FY 22-23 

INSURANCE REQUIRED 

A. Professional Liability- Coverage must be afforded, under an "occtlffence" 
fonn policy or "claims made" fo1m, in limits not less than $500,000. It is 
required that Professional Liability Insurance coverage be provided for all 
acts and omissions that occm during the renn of the agreement. If this 
coverage is written on a claims made fonn, proof of extended repo1ting 
period coverage is required. 

B. The Disuict Medical Examiner shall provide a Certificate of Insurance to the 
County with a sixty (60) day notice of cancellation. 

Updated: 5/3/2022 



Professional Fees: 
Complete Autopsy 
External Examination Only 
Report of Investigation 

ATTACHMENT "C" 
FY 22-23 

Variable Expense Fee List 

Expert Witness Fee per Hour ( see note 1) 
Technical Fees (see note 2): 

Tissue Preparation for Microscopic exam (routine case) 
Toxicology Laboratory (routine testing) 
Cremation Fee 
Body Transport by ATS or Investigators for Homicide/Suspicious Death 

Notes: 

(1) No charges will incur for pre-trial consultation on criminal cases in 8th Judicial Circuit 

$ 800.00 
$ 250.00 
$ 175.00 
$ 300.00 

$ 175.00 
$ 190.00 
$ 30.00 
$ 190.00 

(2) Costs for transportation of human remains, special lab tests, special toxicology followup testing, 
radiology, odontology, anthropology, and specialized consultations uncommonly required will be billed per 
case as charges are received and paid by the Medical Examiner Office. 

Updated 5/3/2022 



DocuSign Envelope ID: C528E576-1C35-49AC·A532·6EAF305DAADB 

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO 
THREE-PARTY AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

ALACHUA COUNTY 
AND 

THE UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
AND 

WILLIAM F. HAMIL TON, M.O. 
FOR DISTRICT MEDICAL EXAMINER SERVICES, 

UNIVERSITY PHYSIClAN SUPPORT SERVICES, 
UNIVERSITY NON-PHYSICIAN SUPPORT 

SERVICES AND FACILITY USE 

THE THREE-PARTY AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), made and entered into the pt 
day of October, 2017 {"Effective Date"), by and among Alachua COUNTY, a political 
subdivision of the State of Florida, by and through its Board of County Commissioners, 
hereinafter referred to as the "County", and THE UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES, hereii'lafter referred to as "University", FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE 
DEPARTMENT OF PATHOLOGY, IMMUNOLOGY AND LABORATORY MEDICINE, 
COLLEGE OF MEDICINE, UNlVERSlTY OF FLORIDA, and WILLIAM F. 
HAMILTON, M.D., hereinafter referred to as the "District Medical Examiner", is hereby 
amended effective the pt day of October, 2021 by this Fourth Amendment, and the parties 
heretofore named agree as follows: 

I. Section 3 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its· entirety and replaced with a new 
Section 3 to read: 

3. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and 
remain in full force and effect through September 30, 2022, unless first tenninated or amended by 
the parties as provided herein. 

2. Section 8 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with a new 
Section 8 to read: 

8. Annual Budget. No later than July I, 2022, the District Medical Examiner, with 
the assistance of UNIVERSITY. shall submit to the Board of County Commissioners of County 
an annual budget for the next ensuing fiscal year October 1, through September 30. The District 
Medical Examiner's budget for Fiscal Year 2021/2022 as submitted to County is attached to this 
Agreement as Attachment A and is Incorporated herein by this reference. 

3. Section 10 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and a new Section 10 is 
established to read as follows: 

10. Compensation by County. THE DISTRICT MEDICAL EXAMINER 
EXPRESSLY RECOGNIZES THAT ALL FEES AND COMPENSATION PAID TO 
UNIVERSITY PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION CONSTITUTE THE ENTIRE 
OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY, AND FURTHER, NEITHER THE DISTRICT . 
MEDICAL EXAMINER, NOR ANY MEMBER OF HIS STAFF, WILL RECEIVE 
COMPENSATION DIRECTLY FROM THE COUNTY FOR SERVICES PURSUANT TO 
THIS AGREEMENT. As compensation for the District Medical Examiner's services and 
UNIVERSITY's Faculty Physician support services, non-physician support personnel services 
and for facility usage, the County shall pay UNIVERSITY an annual amount equal to Six 

UF #618278 



DocuSign Envelope ID: C528E576-1C35-49AC-A532-6EAF3D5DMDB 

Hundred Eighty Thousand Three Hundred Eight Dollars and Forty-Four Cents ($680,308.44). 
Payment shall be made to UNIVERSITY in twelve (12) equal monthly installments of the sum of 
Fifty-Six Thousand Six Hundred Ninety-Two Dollars and Thirty-Seven Cents ($56,692.37), the 
first of which shall be paid forty.five ( 45) days after the commencement of the tenn of this 
Agreement. In addition, the County shall separately pny UNIVERSITY for autopsy and related 
services in accordance with the fee schedule attached hereto as Attachment C. UNIVERSITY 
shall provide County with a detailed monthly invoice indicating all autopsies performed up to the 
date of the invoice. A copy of the death certificate for each autopsy will be provided with the 
invoice. After review, and if properly supported, County shall pay invoiced fees wi1hin forty-five 
( 45) days of receipt of the invoice. All invoices shall be sent directly to: 

Community Support Services Director 
Alachua County Department or Community Support Services 

218 SE 24th Street 
Gainesville, FL 3264) 

ti 4. Attachment A to the Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced with the revised version 
of Attachment A that is attached to this Fourth Amendment and is hereby incorporated into lhe 
Agreement by reference. /• 

5. Attachment B to the Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced with the revised version 
of Attachment B that is attached to this Fourth Amendment and is hereby incorporated into the 
Agreement by reference. 

6. Attachment C to the Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced with the revised version 
of Attachment C that is attached to this Fourth Amendment and is hereby incorporated into the 
Agreement by reference. 

7. · In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Agreement and this Fourth 
Amendment, the terms of this Fourth Amendment sholl control. 

UF #6 18278 



DocuSlgn Envelope ID: C528E576- I C35·49AC-A532-6EAF305DMDB 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Fourth Amendment to be 
executed for the uses and purposes therein expressed on the day and year first above-written. 

ALACHUA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Name: ____ _ ___ _ _ 

Chair . Ken-COmell 
Board of County Commissioners 

ATTEST 

By: ~~ &L. '1f.s-t4f 
Alachua C~ Date 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

THE UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA BOARD 
OF TRUSTEES, FOR THE BENEFIT OF 
THE DEPARTMENT OF PATHOLOGY, 
IMMUNOLOGY AND LABORATORY 
f\1EDICINE, COLLEGE OF MEDICINE, 

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA 

By:_-:-- -:--:-:-:::----:-:-~,---,,---=-
Collecn G. Koch, M.D., M.S., M.B.A. Date 

Dean, College of Medicine 
University of Florida 

DISTRICT MEDICAL EXAMlNER 

By:@ J)/4_,__i~ ffAU1, W~; 
William F. Hamilton, M.D. Date 

UF #618278 



DocuSign Envelope ID: C528E576-1 C35-49AC·A532-6EAF305DAADB 

Attachment "A" 
MEDICAL EXAMINER District 8 Budget 

Effective October 1, 2021 • September 30, 2022 
OPeratino Cost Fixed Exoenses FY 21-22 
Salaries and Benefits 

Salary orrset' (Pro Fees reimbursed to UF for Salaries) 
Contractual Services Facilities (Records storage, Biohazard) 
Repairs and Maintenance (Equipment, vehicles) 
Dala Processing (Internet and back up) 
Operating Supplies (Autopsy and Office) 
Rent 
Printing & Reproduction 
Insurance, Liability and Auto 
Telephone, Postage, & Freight 
Travel/Meetings (Work Related/CMEICEU Requirements) 
Dues, Subscriptions, Library 
Miscellaneous (Utilities , Fuel) 
Administration F ee1 

Capital Expenses 
Net Operating Cost Expense 

Entity [ 2020 Year [ % f C I d I Annual 
Ac(ua/ o ase oa Assessment 

Alachua 591 .. 64.6% $ 680,3p8.44 ; 

Baker 35 3.8% $ 40,(l18.20 
Bradford 44 4.8%. $ 50,549.28 
Dixie 28 3.1%- $ 32,646.36 
Gilchrist 17 1.9% '. $ 20,009.04 
Levy 53 5.8% $ 61,080.36 
Union 13 1.4% ' $ 14,743.56 

Tota l 

$ 731,629 

$ (267,010) 
$ 35,000 
$ 5,000 
$ 12,500 
$ 65,000 
$ 307,390 
$ 3,000 
$ 9,500 
$ 4,000 
$ 10,000 
$ 500 
$ 40,000 

$ 96,600 
$ -
$ 1,053,109 

Monthly 
Assessment 

$ 56,692 37 

$ 3,334.85 
$ 4,212.44 
$ 2,720.53 
$ 1,667.42 
$ 5,090.03 
$ 1,228.63 

Dept of Corrections" 133 14.6% $ 153,753.96 I $ 12,812.83 

Total I 914 I 100.00%1 $ 1,053,109.20 $ 87 759.10 
Rounding Adjustment $ (0.20) 

Ooeratlno Cost Tolal Validation Check $ 1 053109.00 $ 87,759.08 
j Non-Corrections case average per month: 65 
Av□. OneratinCJ Cost Per Case: $ 1,151.54 

DOC ALL 133 100.00% : $ 153,753.96 ! $ 12,812.83 
l ' 
' 

Total T 133 I 100.00%1 $ 153.75396 $ 12,812.83 
Rounding Adjustment $ . 

DOC Assessment Total Validation Check $ 153 753.96 
I Corrections case average per month: 11 
Ava. Ooerating Cost Per Case: $ 1,156.04 

Expense Total Budaet Estimator FY 20-21 

District 8 Operating Cost Assessment Total $ 1,053,109 
Professional Services Cases Eslimate 
(Variable per case) Fee ◄ Total $ 1,023,210 

Autopsy $ 775 607 $ 470,425 To UF for Ors 

External Examination $ 225 187 $ 42,075 To UF for Ors 
Investigative Report $ 150 120 $ 18,000 To UF for Ors 
Investigation (Ali Cases) $ 150 914 $ 137,100 To UF for Ors 
Tech Autopsy Fee $ 100 607 $ 60,700 To UF for On-Cail 
Toxicology $ 180 607 $ 109,260 To UF/DRL 
Histology $ 175 607 $ 106,225 To UF/DRL 

Cremation Approval $ 25 3,177 $ 79,425 To U F for Processina 

Total Budget $ 2 076 319 
Typical Total Cost per case $ 2,272 

Note I Autopsy. Exam. Invest, Tech & Cremation fees are reimbursed for cases by UF staff pathologists 

No!•?. Adminislration Fee ol 5% includes Human Resources, Purchasing and Financial Services 

Nott 3 DOC operating expense portion included in new fixed fee per case contract 
Noto ◄ Professional fees are itemized in Attachment "C" 

Latest Update 5/5/2021 



DocuSign Envelope 10: C528E576-1C35-49AC-A532-6EAF3050AADB 

ATTACHMENT ''B'' 
FY 21-22 

INSURANCE REQUlRED 

A. Professional Liability- Coverage must be afforded, under an "occul1'ence" 
form policy or "claims made" form, in limits not less than $500,000. It is 
required that Professional Liability Insurance coverage be provided for all 
acts and omissions that occur during the term of the agreement. If this 
coverage is written on a claims made form, proof of extended reporting 
period coverage is required. 

B. The District Medical Examiner shall provide a Certificate ofinsurance to the 
Counly with a sixty (60) day notice of cancellation. 

MEO Budget September 2021 October 2022 Final.xlsx, Alt "B" Updated: 4/29/2021 



DocuSlgn Envelope ID. C528E576-1C35-49AC-A532-6EAF305DAADB 

Professional Fees: 
Complete Autopsy 
External Examination Only 

ATTACHMENT 11C 11 

FY 21-22 

Variable Exoense Fee List 

Medical Examiner Report of Investigation 
Expert Witness Fee per Hour (see note 1) 

Technical Fees (see note 2): 
Autopsy Technical Fee 
Tissue Preparation for Microscopic exam (routine case) 
Toxicology Laboratory (routine testing) 
Cremation Fee 
Body Transport by ATS or Investigators for Homicide/Suspicious Death 

Notes: 

(1) No charges will incur for pre-trial consultation on criminal cases in 8th Judicial Circuit 

$ 775.00 
$ 225.00 
$ 150.00 
$ 300.00 

$ 100.00 
$ 175.00 
$ 180.00 
$ 25.00 
$ 190.00 

(2) Costs for transportation of human remains, special lab tests, special toxicology followup testing, 
radiology, odontology, anthropology, and specialized consultations uncommonly required will be billed per 
case as charges are received and paid by the Medical Examiner Office. 

· MEO Budget September 2021 October 2022 Final.xlsx, Alt C 
Autopsy Fees were last increased in FY 13-14 Updated 4/29/2021 




	Medical Examiners Commission Meeting
	MEC Agenda 11-2022.pdf
	ISSUE NUMBER PRESENTER

	MEC Agenda 11-2022.pdf
	ISSUE NUMBER PRESENTER




